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Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. was established
in 1962 and began operations in 1963 with the
transfer of the business assets of the Chemical
Products Division of Hitachi, Ltd. Since then,
based on the extensive technology platform it
has accumulated over many years, the Company
has continuously worked to expand its field of
operations, developing innovative technologies
and new business ventures as a chemical
manufacturer engaged in a wide range of
areas, including Electronics-Related Products,
Chemical-Related Products, and Housing
Equipment and Environmental Facilities.
Hitachi Chemical will continue its efforts to
develop valuable new products and improve its
technologies in key business fields with high
growth potential, including telecommunications
& displays, energy, life sciences, and
automobiles. As a technologically innovative
corporation that provides optimal solutions to
its customers, Hitachi Chemical is combining
and harmonizing the superior technologies it has
accumulated over the years in order to maximize
the value of the Hitachi Chemical Group and
contribute to a more prosperous society while
maintaining its strong commitment to protecting
the environment.
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This Annual Report may contain certain statements that Hitachi Chemical
believes are, or may be considered to be, “forward-looking statements.” These
forward-looking statements generally use statements that include phrases such
as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “foresee,” or other similar words or
phrases. Similarly, statements that describe our objectives, plans, or goals are
also forward-looking statements. All of these forward-looking statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to
differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking
statements. The principal important risk factors that could cause actual performance and future actions to differ materially from those contemplated by
the relevant forward-looking statements are: uncertainty as to the ability of
Hitachi Chemical to continue to develop and market products that achieve
market acceptance; fluctuations in product demand and industry capacity;
exchange rates and fluctuations between the yen and other currencies in which
Hitachi Chemical makes significant sales or in which the assets and liabilities of
Hitachi Chemical are denominated, particularly between the yen and the U.S.
dollar; uncertainty as to the access of Hitachi Chemical to liquidity or longterm financing, particularly in the context of restrictions or availability of credit
prevailing in Japan; uncertainty as to the ability of Hitachi Chemical to implement measures to reduce the potential negative impact of fluctuations in product demand and/or exchange rates; economic conditions, and the regulatory
and trade environment of the major markets of Hitachi Chemical; and the
market prices of equity securities in Japan, declines in which may result in the
devaluation loss of equity securities held by Hitachi Chemical. However, risk
factors are not limited to the above.
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TECHNOLOGICAL

AND

BUSINESS FIELDS

The technology platform of the Hitachi Chemical Group — the

Incubation from Market Trends
and Customer Needs

source of its new businesses and new products — is the aggregate
of the broad and deep technology, knowledge and experience in
organic and inorganic materials built up over many years, since the
start of research into insulating varnishes for motors at Hitachi, Ltd.

Main Product Groups

in 1912.

Semiconductor- and
Display-Related
Materials

The source of this technology platform can be traced back to the
technologies for the four original products developed in the
Company’s early years. First are molecular design, synthesis,

Key Business Fields

Printed Wiring Boards
and Materials for
Printed Wiring Boards

purification, extraction and analysis technologies accumulated
through research and development of synthetic resins used in
insulating varnishes. Second are impregnation, coating, and
lamination

technologies

cultivated

through

research

development of insulating laminates derived from synthetic resin
technology. Third are inorganic synthesis, molding and ceramic
firing technologies amassed through research and development of

Technology Platform

Co

ceramic insulators. Fourth are particle design and high heat
treatment

technologies

cultivated

through

research

Telecommunications
& Displays

and

and

development of carbon brushes for motors.

Organic and Inorganic
Chemical Products
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Material Technology

With this initial technology platform as the foundation, Hitachi
Chemical has developed and commercialized a variety of advanced
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Original Products
Insulating
Varnishes

even introducing outside technologies as necessary, to develop
business in four key business fields: telecommunications & displays,
energy, life sciences, and automobiles. These fields allow Hitachi
Chemical to make the most of its technological strengths, and have
good prospects for high growth in the future.
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Today, the Company uses its original technology platform,
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our technology platform.
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combining and integrating material and process technologies into
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a virtuous cycle of incorporating the new technologies generated by
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platform through research and development. In addition, we repeat
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products, in each case we extended and enhanced this technology

Automotive Parts
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and environmental facilities. In creating these new businesses and
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diagnostic reagents and related equipment; and housing equipment
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chemical products; advanced functional films; automotive parts;
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and materials for printed wiring boards; organic and inorganic
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semiconductors and liquid crystal displays; printed wiring boards
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chemical materials and components, including materials for
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Molecular and Particle Design
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Nanotechnology
Function Design

Advanced
Functional Films

Diagnostics
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and Environmental
Facilities
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>>> F I N A N C I A L

HIGHLIGHTS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(except per share data)
(Note 1)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2004

2003

2002

2004

2004/2003
% change

For the year:
Net sales......................................................
Operating income .......................................
Net income .................................................
Additions to tangible and intangible fixed assets...
Research and development expenses ............

¥521,358
33,774
15,784
26,331
24,908

¥494,226
24,930
8,644
23,576
22,933

¥480,777
13,048
3,141
27,349
22,894

$4,918,472
318,623
148,906
248,406
234,981

5.5%
35.5
82.6
11.7
8.6

At year-end:
Total assets..................................................
Total stockholders’ equity............................

¥393,835
157,311

¥407,148
146,443

¥418,408
143,692

$3,715,425
1,484,066

(3.3)%
7.4

¥

¥

¥

$

89.1%
90.8
9.1
7.6

Per share data:
Net income (basic) (Note 2)........................
Net income (diluted) (Note 2).....................
Cash dividends declared ..............................
Total stockholders’ equity............................

75.47
75.44
12.00
758.44

Value indicators:
Return on sales (%) .....................................
Return on equity (%) ..................................
Return on assets (%) ...................................

39.91
39.54
11.00
704.87

3.0
10.4
3.9

15.28
—
10.00
693.35

1.7
6.0
2.1

0.71
0.71
0.11
7.16

0.7
2.3
0.7

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥106=US$1, the approximate exchange
rate at the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2004.
2. Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No. 2, “Calculations of Earnings Per Share of the current net
earnings.” See Note 1 (m) to the consolidated financial statements on page 40.
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TO O U R S H A R E H O L D E R S

Y A S U J I N AG A S E
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Overview of Consolidated Results for Fiscal 2003
In fiscal 2003, ended March 31, 2004, the Hitachi Chemical Group generated growth in both sales and
income. Supported mainly by an expansion in demand for digital consumer appliances, net sales increased
5 percent over the previous fiscal year to ¥521.4 billion. Operating income increased 35 percent to ¥33.8
billion, and net income rose 83 percent to ¥15.8 billion. Net income per share (basic) increased from
¥39.91 to ¥75.47, while return on equity rose from 6.0 percent to 10.4 percent.

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. achieved growth
in sales and income in fiscal 2003, and
increased cash dividends to ¥12.00 per share.

The Board of Directors of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
approved a resolution to increase cash dividends for fiscal 2003
to ¥12.00 per share. In fiscal 2002, the Company paid ordinary
dividends totaling ¥10.00 per share, plus a special

commemorative dividend of ¥1.00 per share honoring the 40th anniversary of the establishment of the
Company.

Achievements in Fiscal 2003 and Issues for Fiscal 2004
During fiscal 2003, with the aim of improving growth potential and profitability, the Hitachi Chemical
Group focused on four key objectives: creating new businesses and products; implementing
countermeasures for low-profit businesses and products; participating in growth markets overseas; and
strengthening overall group management.
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Creating New Businesses and Products
The Hitachi Chemical Group’s key competitive advantages include a diverse product lineup and the
ability to offer optimal solutions for a variety of customer requirements. These strengths are based on a
broad technology platform unmatched by other companies. At the same time, however, this business model
requires dispersing valuable management resources over a wide spectrum and consequently carries the risk
of lowering return on investment. Awareness of this problem led us to identify 10 Key Growth Products
and 10 Strategic Development Projects that provided a framework for us to allocate management resources
in a selective and concentrated manner in fiscal 2003.
The 10 Key Growth Products encompass four business fields: telecommunications & displays, energy,
life sciences and automobiles. We set a target of increasing sales of these specific products, which totaled
¥34.5 billion in fiscal 2002, to ¥60.0 billion by fiscal 2005. As a result of our continued efforts to raise
revenues, in fiscal 2003 sales of the 10 Key Growth Products reached ¥52.1 billion, and we now expect to
achieve our initial target of ¥60.0 billion in fiscal 2004, one year early. We will revise our fiscal 2005 sales
target upward to ¥70.0 billion, and will work to expand this business even further.
We selected our 10 Strategic Development Projects from the aforementioned four fields. By fiscal 2007,
we plan to generate sales of ¥40.0 billion from products that emerge from these 10 projects. In fiscal 2004,
we expect to begin manufacturing products such as ultra-thin materials for multilayer printed wiring boards
and single crystals for the next generation of semiconductor photolithography equipment. In addition, we
will make efforts to further improve our product development efficiency.
Implementing Countermeasures for Low-Profit Businesses and Products
Due to the fact that the Hitachi Chemical Group manufactures a diverse range of products,
countermeasures to address low-profit businesses were necessary in order to improve our overall profitability.
After the collapse of the IT bubble, falling prices and declining demand in our domestic printed wiring board
(PWB) business led to deteriorating profits and a descent into red ink. However, countermeasures such as
the restructuring and consolidation of overlapping PWB production bases within the Hitachi Chemical
Group were successful. As a result of these efforts, this business area turned a profit in Japan and overseas in
fiscal 2003. In the future, the parent company, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., will concentrate on research and
development, take further actions to promote
As we work to create new businesses and products
business efficiency by allocating appropriate roles for
through our selection and concentration approach,
each Group company, and enact proactive steps to
we are also strengthening profitability with counterboost profitability for all.
measures for low-profit businesses and products.
In order to implement successful countermeasures
that curtailed low-profit businesses across the Group, we initiated the formation of the Product
Transformation Committee. This task force scrutinized specific products and employed drastic changes,
including withdrawal from the market in some instances. In fiscal 2003, further countermeasures were
applied to seven unprofitable products. We restored profitability of three products, decided to withdraw
one, and applied sweeping changes to the remaining three. During fiscal 2004, we will continue on this
path in order to eliminate unprofitable products.

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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Participating in Growth Markets Overseas
With the continued globalization of businesses, participation in overseas growth markets remains an
important issue concerning all companies. In fiscal 2003, the Hitachi Chemical Group expanded its global
operations, particularly in China, where we built a new manufacturing company for photosensitive dry
films for PWBs and automotive batteries and launched operations. In addition, the Hitachi ChemicalShanghai Jiao Tong University Research and Development Center on the university’s campus began fullscale collaborative activities. Moreover, we are planning to expand production capacity for advanced copperclad laminates for multilayer PWBs that are being manufactured at an alliance company in Hong Kong.
At the beginning of fiscal 2004, we
While aggressively promoting overseas development by
established a new management structure for
expanding operating bases centered on China, we are
the purpose of further stimulating sales,
clarifying the missions of Group companies to strengthen
primarily in greater China. In addition, we
consolidated Group management.
made changes to our sales networks in Taiwan
region and Singapore, and decided to establish manufacturing companies in China mainland for
the production of powdered metallurgical products and automotive parts, respectively.
As we move forward with our offshore expansion, we expect to raise the percentage of overseas sales to
total net sales from 24.3 percent in fiscal 2003 to 30 percent by fiscal 2007.
Strengthening Group Management
In fiscal 2003, for the purpose of strengthening our consolidated group management, the Hitachi Chemical
Group companies were classified into three categories: “management linked” companies that operate
autonomously under a shared management vision; “operationally linked” companies that work to integrate
strategies and operational activities in pursuit of maximizing synergy among Hitachi Chemical’s businesses;
and “functionally linked” companies that are involved in group-wide responsibilities such as sales, research,
equipment maintenance and distribution. Each company was given a clear mission. In fiscal 2004, we will

Outline of Mid-Term Management Plan

> Aspirations of the Hitachi Chemical Group
Earn the trust of capital markets, customers, employees
and society and contribute to society as a technologically innovative
group that provides optimal solutions to customers.

> Targets
Increase the corporate value of the Hitachi Chemical Group by achieving
consolidated net sales of ¥600 billion, consolidated operating income of
¥60 billion and an operating income ratio of 10 percent in fiscal 2007

> Guidelines for Fundamental Activities
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1

Create new businesses and products based on strengthening the technology
platform for materials.

2

Maximize Group management efficiency by innovating productivity.

3

Strengthen the basis for increased sales and income through optimal deployment of
management resources.

4

Fulfill corporate social responsibility (CSR) and implement environmental management to
enable sustainable growth.

5

Cultivate employees to be the next generation of leaders.

continue to raise the Group’s overall
management efficiency by ensuring that each
company

achieves

its

objectives,

and

furthermore we will not hesitate to eliminate
or restructure unprofitable subsidiaries.
At the end of fiscal 2003, we operated 64
subsidiary companies, a decrease of one from
the previous year. In addition, interest-bearing
debt for the Group as a whole was reduced to
¥47.0 billion. As a result, our current interestbearing debt is nearly the same amount as cash
on hand, which means the Group is debt-free
for all practical purposes.

Creation of Mid-Term Management Plan
The Company recently formulated a new Mid-Term Management Plan covering fiscal years 2004 to
2006. This new plan is built around five themes:
> Creating new businesses and products
> Maximizing Group management efficiency
> Strengthening the basis for increased sales and income
> Fulfilling corporate social responsibility and implementing environmental management
> Continued development and training of human resources
With these five themes as our fundamental guidelines, we will work steadily to increase sales and income.
Above all, the successful implementation of exemplary corporate social responsibility practices and
scrupulous environmental management policies are essential elements for sustainable growth. The Company
is committed to contributing to the progress of society by developing superior technologies and products that
reflect our stewardship over the environment. Our aim
Based on our Mid-Term Management Plan for the
is to implement environmental protection practices
three years to fiscal 2006, we aim to maximize Hitachi
that will also contribute to overall management
Chemical’s corporate value as a technologically
efficiency.
innovative group that achieves sustainable growth.
With regard to the economic outlook for fiscal 2004, IT-related demand is projected to continue growing,
primarily in the United States. However, events such as a possible slowdown in the economy following the
U.S. presidential election and high market prices for raw materials make the economic outlook difficult to
predict. The Hitachi Chemical Group will do its best to avoid the effects of any negative economic trends
and will aim to maximize the value of the Group as a technologically innovative corporation generating
continuous growth and long-term sustainability.
July 2004

YASUJI N AGASE
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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H I TAC H I C H E M I C A L

AT A

GLANCE

(As of March 31, 2004)

Main Products

Net Sales

E LECTRONICS -R ELATED P RODUCTS
Semiconductor- and Display-Related Materials
■ Slurry for Chemical Mechanical Planarization
■ Heat-Resistant Fine Polymers
■ Die Bonding Materials
■ Epoxy Molding Compounds
■ Anisotropic Conductive Films for Liquid Crystal Displays
■ Light Guides for Liquid Crystal Displays
Printed Wiring Boards and Related Products
■ Multilayer Printed Wiring Boards
■ Multiwire Boards
■ Package Substrates
■ Copper-Clad Laminates for Printed Wiring Boards
■ Photosensitive Dry Films for Printed Wiring Boards
■ Liquid Photoimageable Solder Resist
■ Plating Chemicals for Printed Wiring Boards
Others
■ Capacitors

Percentage of Net Sales

43.3％
300

(Billions of yen)

250
200
150
100
50
0

99 00 01 02 03 04

C HEMICAL -R ELATED P RODUCTS
Organic Chemical Products
Plastic Molded
■ Electrical Insulating Varnishes
Products
■ Unsaturated Polyester Resins
■ Automotive Molded
■ Synthetic Resins for Paints
Parts
■ Expandable Polystyrene Beads ■ Adhesive Films
■ ASA Resins
■ Electromagnetic
■ Pharmaceuticals and Diagnostics
Interference
■ Microchips for Rapid
Shielding Films for
Electrophoresis Analysis
Plasma Display Panels
■ Adhesives
Others
Inorganic Chemical Products ■ Batteries
■ Carbon Brushes
■ Powdered Metal
■ Carbon Anode Materials for
Products
Lithium Ion Batteries
■ Carbon and Graphite Products
■ Ceramics
■ Single Crystals
■ Disc Brake Pads

H OUSING E QUIPMENT

AND

Percentage of Net Sales

40.9％
300

(Billions of yen)

250
200
150
100
50
0

99 00 01 02 03 04

E NVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES
■
■
■
■
■
■

■
■
■

Prefabricated Bathroom Units
Home Bathtubs
System Kitchens
Compact Sized Kitchen Units
Vanity Tables
Toilet Seats with Warm Water Cleansing and
Bidet Functions
Home Boilers
Domestic Wastewater Treatment Systems
Fiber Reinforced Plastic Water Tanks

Percentage of Net Sales

15.8％

100

(Billions of yen)

80
60
40
20
0

99 00 01 02 03 04

Notes: 1. Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. is included in the total number of companies listed for two segments, Electronics-Related Products and Chemical-Related Products.
Seven companies, including Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd., carry out activities in all segments and are included in the total number of companies listed for each segment.
2. Years in graphs represent fiscal years ended March 31.
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Operating Income

Percentage of Operating Income

69.0％
30

(Billions of yen)

Results and Topics

Consolidated Subsidiaries
Total: 64 Companies

Solid demand for mobile phones and digital consumer appliances

Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.

led to increased semiconductor production and expansion of the

Hitachi AIC Inc.

LCD market. Against this backdrop, sales of materials for

Hitachi Chemical Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd.

semiconductors and LCDs expanded, as did sales of printed wiring

Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd.

boards and related materials. Consequently, sales of Electronics-

Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd. and 20 others

Related Products increased 10.1 percent year-on-year to ¥225.8

25

billion, and operating income increased 70.5 percent to ¥23.3

20

billion.

Total: 25 companies

15
10
5
0

99 00 01 02 03 04

Percentage of Operating Income

25.9％

15

(Billions of yen)

Sales of batteries and crosslinked foamed polyethylene declined,

Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.

and sales of GSO single crystals were essentially unchanged from

Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd.

the previous fiscal year. However, sales of automotive molded

Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd.

parts and new products such as carbon anode materials for lithium

Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd.

ion batteries and electromagnetic interference shielding films for

Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products Co., Ltd.

plasma display panels continued to perform well. As a result, sales

Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd. and 34 others

of Chemical-Related Products increased 2.2 percent to ¥213.1

12

billion, and operating income decreased 11.5 percent to ¥8.7
9

Total: 40 companies

billion.

6
3
0

99 00 01 02 03 04

Percentage of Operating Income

5.1％

4

(Billions of yen)

The use of prefabricated bathroom units in new detached houses

Hitachi Housetec Co., Ltd.

increased due to higher demand ahead of the expiration of housing

Hitachi Housetec East Co., Ltd.

loan tax deductions, and sales of system kitchens with peripheral

Hitachi Housetec West Co., Ltd.

equipment also increased. As a result, sales of Housing Equipment

Hitachi Kasei Maintenance Co., Ltd.

and Environmental Facilities increased 2.1 percent year-on-year

Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd. and 9 others

to ¥82.5 billion, and operating income increased 24.7 percent to
¥1.7 billion.

Total: 14 companies

3
2
1
0

99 00 01 02 03 04
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NEW DEVELOPMENTS

IN

F I S C A L 2003

Patent for Anisotropic Conductive
Films for Liquid Crystal Displays Wins
Prize for Innovation (June 2003)
The patent for anisotropic conductive films for
liquid crystal displays has played a major role in
the advancement and spread of modern liquid
crystal displays. In recognition of this
contribution, it was selected for the Prime
Minister’s Prize for Innovation from the Japan
Institute of Invention and Innovation (JIII).

Development of High-Modulus Low-k
Organic SOG Materials for 65nm
Technology Node (June 2003)
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. has developed highmodulus low-k organic spin-on glass (SOG)
materials for interlayer dielectric materials for nextgeneration 65nm semiconductors. In addition to
high Young’s modulus and high adhesion, the HSG255 materials have ample resistance in the CMP
process, and their high level of practical utility has
been widely recognized.

E LECTRONICS -R ELATED P RODUCTS
Copper-Clad Laminate Business in
China Strengthened (March 2004)
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. started local contract
production in Hong Kong at the end of 2002 to
meet growing demand in China for advanced
copper-clad laminates for multilayer printed
wiring boards. In March 2004, the Company
began contract production in Suzhou, Jiangsu
Province, to meet growth in demand and shorten
delivery times, and is working to expand sales
with a focus on halogen-free copper-clad
laminates.

8

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

Liquid Encapsulant Production
Capacity Expanded (March 2004)
Liquid encapsulant production capacity at the
Company’s Shimodate Works has been doubled
from 40 tons to 80 tons per year. The expansion will
support efforts to increase sales of encapsulants for
new chip packages, including underfill materials for
flip chip Ball Grid Arrays, which have particularly
promising growth prospects.

Production Capacity Expansion of
Carbon Anode Material for Lithium Ion
Batteries (September 2003)
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. has expanded production
capacity for carbon anode material used in lithium
ion batteries from 150 tons to 220 tons per month.
This project expanded the furnace for heat treatment
and front-end production lines for pulverizing,
kneading and molding of raw materials at the
Yamazaki Works.

Production Capacity Expansion of EMI
Shielding Film for PDPs (November 2003)
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. plans to increase
production capacity for electromagnetic interference
(EMI) shielding film for plasma display panels
(PDPs) from the current level of 70,000 sheets per
month to 250,000 sheets by July 2004. For this
purpose, the Company is expanding the Goshomiya
Works and its production facilities for resin film
carried on copper foil.

C HEMICAL -R ELATED P RODUCTS
Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery and
Matsushita Battery Industrial Form
Tie-up in Lead Battery Business
(December 2003)
Subsidiary Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.
has agreed to form a business tie-up with Matsushita
Battery Industrial Co., Ltd. in the lead battery
business. The two companies will jointly develop
new technologies and products to meet diversifying
customer needs, and will also seek to reduce costs
and boost their competitiveness.

Strengthening Development in New
Fields for Functional Acrylic Monomers
(January 2004)
Production capacity has been increased at the Goi
Works for functional acrylic monomers, which are
used in photosensitive dry films for printed wiring
boards and other applications. The Company will
aggressively develop them in new business fields,
including materials for displays and optical disks.

Bathroom Renovation Panel Kit Receives
First Recognition Under “Better Living for
a Better Society” System (March 2004)
The bathroom renovation panel kit developed by
Hitachi Housetec Co., Ltd. for prefabricated housing
met the demanding standards of “Better Living for a
Better Society,” a quality housing components
certification system established by The Center for
Better Living, a nonprofit foundation. The kit received
the first recognition as a “housing component that
helps to realize a better society.”

H OUSING E QUIPMENT AND
E NVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES
Development of New Molding
Technology for Bath Floor Materials
(March 2004)
Hitachi Housetec Co., Ltd. has developed
MicroPattern (patent pending), a new molding
technology for bath flooring. This is a technology
for molding a micro-sized grid mesh pattern on the
surface of bath flooring to make it slip-resistant and
easy to clean.

(Enlarged view)

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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B U S I N E S S S T R AT E G I E S
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What are the main strengths of Hitachi Chemical’s
Electronics-Related Products business?
The Hitachi Chemical Group has a broad range of
technology for world-class materials and components,
including materials for semiconductors, materials for liquid
crystal displays, printed wiring boards (PWBs) and materials
for PWBs. With this business foundation, we conduct sales
and technical service activities in close contact with
customers, which helps us to anticipate customer needs.
Another major strength is our ability to design and provide
the optimal solutions by combining the materials and services

Main Initiatives
> Strengthen Key Growth

Products with high profitability
> Develop Material System Solution

in new technological fields
> Bolster production and sales

structure in Asian markets

suitable for customers’ applications and processes. In the
Hitachi Chemical Group, we refer to this business model as
“Material System Solution” (MSS).
In particular, as information service technologies continue
to converge, interconnection technology is expected to grow
more sophisticated along with trends such as smaller packages
and higher-definition wiring in the packaging process field,
which encompasses semiconductors, packaging substrates and
PWBs. In the fields that require these diverse technologies,
demand is steadily increasing for the new materials and
components needed for a technological breakthrough.
Therefore, we want to expand our business by focusing on
MSS, taking advantage of our unique broad technology
platform that other companies cannot match.

Please explain your basic business strategy under
the Mid-Term Management Plan.
In the medium term, further growth is projected in the
telecommunication and display fields. So we will concentrate
on those fields in focusing investment of management
resources on development of materials and components
targeting the packaging process, digital consumer appliance
and liquid crystal display markets. The key words for our
future business development will be “Green (environmentally
friendly),” “Fine (in terms of both high-definition and value-
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E L E C T R O N I C M AT E R I A L S O P E R AT I O N S S E C T O R

ATU ER ADN O P RO D U C T S
added)” and “MSS.” Keeping these three points foremost in
mind, we will make the most effective use of management
resources to further increase the value of our businesses and
improve the speed of product development. These efforts will
include actively making use of external research institutions
at universities and elsewhere, as well as the Consortium for
Advanced

Semiconductor

Materials

and

Consortium for Advanced Semiconductor
Materials and Related Technologies
(CASMAT)

Related

Technologies (CASMAT) and other consortiums.

What key initiatives are you addressing?

Semiconductor wafers for evaluation

reorganizing Hitachi Chemical Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd., and

First, we will build a solid business foundation by steadily

setting up the China Marketing & Sales Operations

expanding sales of Key Growth Products with high

Department, and intend to use this network to further expand

profitability, including die bonding films for semiconductors,

our sales and market share in the region.

anisotropic conductive films for chip-on-glass (COG),
advanced copper-clad laminates for multilayer PWBs, and
flexible PWBs for chip-on-film (COF). In addition, we will
rapidly move ahead with our effort to establish strategic

* System in Package (SiP):
A packaging technology for sealing multiple semiconductor chips in a
single package. It can sharply reduce development time and cost to
enable the broad application of developed chips.

technologies aimed at next-generation products such as ultrathin materials for multilayer PWBs.
We will also focus on developing MSS in the area of new
technologies. One example is System in Package (SiP)*
modules, which have been attracting attention in the digital
electronics market recently. These modules are being made
smaller and multilayered to reduce package dimensions,
particularly in the market for mobile equipment. The Hitachi
Chemical Group has amassed a wide range of technologies

TAKASHI U RANO

and products related to PWBs and semiconductor materials,

Executive Vice President, Executive Officer and Director,
General Manager of Electronic Materials Operations Sector

which make up SiP. We hope to win an even higher
reputation in high-growth markets by offering these
technologies and products as systems.
In parallel with these efforts, we will actively
develop our overseas business. We plan to further boost
production capacity overseas for products such as
photosensitive dry films for PWBs and advanced copperclad laminates for multilayer PWBs, for which we enhanced
production capacity in fiscal 2003. In China and other Asian
markets, we are strengthening our sales network by
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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>>> E L E C T RO N I C S -R E L AT E D P RO D U C T S : K E Y G RO W T H P RO D U C T S

SEMICONDUCTOR-RELATED MATERIALS

DIE BONDING FILMS

CMP S L U R R Y

Semiconductor die bonding films are materials used

Chemical mechanical planarization (CMP) is a

for adhesion between semiconductor chips and package

technology for polishing and smoothing out uneven

substrates. In addition to having strong adhesion, they

surfaces on dielectric film in the process of inter-layer

help to mitigate the distortions that occur due to

dielectric and inter-metal dielectric formation. CMP

differences in the coefficient of thermal expansion of

slurry is composed of soluble polymers, which polish

each part. As a result, they contribute to ensuring the

the surfaces chemically, and fine inorganic particles,

reliability of semiconductor packaging.

which polish them mechanically.

In recent years, with the trend toward lighter, thinner

The Company’s CMP slurry helps speed up the

and smaller cellular phones and other mobile products,

polishing process and reduces scratches from polishing.

manufacturers are steadily expanding their use of

As a result, sales have continued to expand, particularly

stacked multi-chip packages, which enable high-density

for applications such as shallow trench isolation (STI),

packaging by stacking chips on chips. This trend has led

which requires the flattest surfaces. Currently, circuit-

to a rapid expansion in demand for semiconductor die

wiring materials are shifting to copper, which has lower

bonding films, particularly for bonding between chips.

electrical resistance, to realize even faster functional

Hitachi Chemical is working to maintain and expand

semiconductor devices. Hitachi Chemical also sells

its market share by offering a full lineup of die bonding

slurries for planarizing copper wiring and barrier metal

films to meet all kinds of customer requirements.

used in the copper wiring process, and they both have
received high approval for their performance.

Stacked multi-chip package (cutaway diagram)

Die bonding films

Polishing process

Market share
Approximately

80

Market share

%

(first worldwide)
Note: Market share and worldwide position are Company estimates.
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Approximately

10

%

(third worldwide)

E LECTRONICS -R ELATED P RODUCTS

FOR

LCDS

Anisotropic conductive films (ACFs) are materials for
interconnecting liquid crystal display (LCD) panel
circuits and LCD driver chips. Composed of an
insulating adhesive material with dispersed conductive
particles and coated as a layer of film on carrier films,
they conduct electricity on a vertical axis through the
conductive particles between the LCD panel circuits and
chip circuits, while preserving the insulation of adjacent
circuits on horizontal axes. This enables the connection

ADVANCED COPPER-CLAD LAMINATES FOR MULTILAYER PWBS

PRINTED WIRING BOARD MATERIALS

DISPLAY-RELATED MATERIALS

ANISOTROPIC CONDUCTIVE FILMS

Copper-clad laminates are press molded laminates
made from glass cloth woven from glass fiber and
impregnated with resins such as epoxy resin, with copper
foil attached to both sides. They are utilized as base
materials for printed wiring boards (PWBs) and
semiconductor packaging substrates.
Hitachi Chemical has developed advanced copper-clad
laminates with features such as high heat-resistance and
halogen-free properties, by means of improvements of

of microcircuits, which was difficult using solder, a

resin based on its polymer technology cultivated over

conventional connecting material. ACFs are thereby

many years. Copper-clad laminates with high heat-

playing a major role in advances in color LCDs and in

resistance also have excellent resistance to moisture and

high-density pixel LCDs that require finer pitch circuit

metal ion migration, and are therefore used in applications

on panels. Hitachi Chemical is now focusing on

that require high reliability, such as semiconductor

expanding sales of film for interconnecting LCD circuits

packaging substrates and multilayer boards for servers and

used in chip-on-glass (COG) modules, which are

routers. Halogen-free copper-clad laminates have flame

advantageous in making LCDs thinner and in lowering

retardant properties without halogenized chemicals, as

their cost, and thus have good prospects for growth in

well as heat durability that enables lead-free soldering.

demand.

They are used in applications such as cellular phones and
Cutaway diagram of cellular phone

digital consumer appliances.

ACFs

Multilayer printed wiring board

Market share
Approximately

60

Market share

%

(first worldwide)

Approximately

20

%

(third worldwide)

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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C
HEMICAL
-R
ELATED
>>> I N T E R V I E W W I T H T A K A S H I
What are the main strengths of Hitachi Chemical’s
Chemical-Related Products business?
First, we have our technology platform for a broad range
of materials, centered on polymer technologies, built up since
research and development of electrical insulating varnishes,
a business recognized as the origin of Hitachi Chemical. This
platform, which was built up by many who came before us,
is a major asset of the Hitachi Chemical Group as a whole,
and has supported its development. Based on this platform,
we use compounding and processing technologies on the

Main Initiatives
> Step up business investment in

Key Growth Products

Company’s original materials to develop new products that
are used in high-growth fields such as telecommunications
and automobiles. In particular, we have a major advantage
in combining both organic and inorganic material

> Early commercialization of next-

generation development projects
> Strengthen competitiveness in

overseas markets by investing in
high-value-added products

technologies. GSO single crystals and electromagnetic
interference (EMI) shielding films for PDPs are two good
examples of new products created from our broad technology
platform and customer-oriented marketing, and effectively
matched to market needs.
Although Electronics-Related Products comprise the core
business of the Hitachi Chemical Group, some of these
products were derived from and created as an application of
resin technology. This means that the Chemical-Related
Products business also serves to support the resin technologies
for the Group’s overall business, so we want to further
strengthen the technology platform necessary for the future.

Please explain your basic business strategy under the
Mid-Term Management Plan.
Our main business areas are telecommunications,
automobiles, environment & energy, and life sciences. In the
automotive field, we will work to meet needs for high added
value in the areas of the environment and safety, energy
savings, lower costs, and the shift to electronics and
information. In the energy field, we are developing new
businesses focusing on next-generation automotive batteries
and components for fuel cells, so these two areas will
14
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P
RODUCTS
M O R I N AG A
continue to grow. Thus, new business
development will proceed by narrowing our focus
in these core fields. Also, we will work to make
life sciences a future core business of the
Company by combining it with the current
diagnostics business. Because these are also the
core areas of focus for the Hitachi Group, we will
cooperate closely with related divisions in the

Hitachi Storage Battery (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
Battery for automobiles

Hitachi Group in developing new products, with a focus on

bases, building production bases, and outsourcing production

the areas of biomedical testing and diagnostics.

through alliances. In the fast-growing Chinese market, Group

At the same time, our strategy includes a focus on further

companies such as Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd. have

improving technologies and developing new growth markets

decided to build new production bases, and plans for

for our core electrical insulating varnishes and resin-related

introducing a number of other products are under

businesses, which support the Group’s material technologies.

consideration. In building our overseas business, we will

On the other hand, some of our mature core products no

differentiate ourselves from other companies by introducing

longer meet the needs of today’s markets. To make effective

high-value-added products that the Company is uniquely

use of limited management resources, we will consider

equipped to provide, such as environmentally friendly

withdrawing products that have no potential for new business

products.

development.

What key initiatives are you addressing?
For protective coating materials for electronics packaging,
film for displays, single crystals for medical equipment, and
materials for lithium ion batteries, which are among Hitachi
Chemical’s 10 Key Growth Products, we aim to maintain and
further expand our leading market shares by stepping up
business investment. Also, in addition to single crystals for
next-generation semiconductor photolithography equipment,
a Strategic Development Project for the next generation, we

TAKASHI M ORINAGA
Executive Officer, General Manager of Advanced
Performance Materials Operations Sector

will promote the early commercialization of new automotive
components, materials for fuel cells and other products in
response to the rising importance of electronics, greater
functionality and lighter weight in automobiles.
To capture a share of expanding overseas markets, our
aggressive overseas business development will be based on an
examination of the best measures for products with good
market competitiveness, including strengthening marketing
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

15

>>> C H E M I C A L -R E L AT E D P RO D U C T S : K E Y G RO W T H P RO D U C T S

INORGANIC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

GSO S I N G L E C R Y S TA L S

FOR

PET S Y S T E M

CARBON ANODE MATERIAL FOR LITHIUM ION BATTERIES

Positron emission tomography (PET) is a new type

The lithium ion battery has approximately three times

of diagnostic imaging technique applied in place of

the voltage and a higher energy density than the nickel

computed tomography (CT) or magnetic resonance

metal hydride (NiMH) battery. Because it can be made

imaging (MRI). After administering a specified

smaller with higher capacity, it is rapidly being adopted

radiopharmaceutical to the patient, the medicine tends

in the power sources of cellular phones and laptop

to concentrate in the cancer cells, emitting gamma rays.

computers. The lithium ion battery functions by the

The PET system is able to produce the image of cancer

following mechanism: when the battery is charged, the

cells by analyzing the gamma rays. This system enables

lithium ions are stored in the anode, and when

the detection of even microscopic cancer cells.

discharged, the lithium ions are released into the cathode.

The Company’s gadolinium silicon oxide (GSO)

The Company’s carbon anode material is massive

single crystal is adopted in the PET system as a scintillator

artificial graphite powder with micro and macro pores,

for transforming the gamma rays into detectable

and is highly crystallized with uniformity. Compared to

fluorescent light. In addition to superior responsiveness

other companies’ products, the Company’s carbon anode

to gamma rays and fluorescence output, it has finer

material can store more lithium ions. Thus it contributes

energy resolution compared to other single crystals. As a

to greater capacity and higher performance of lithium ion

result, the GSO single crystals have contributed

batteries.

substantially to improving the detecting speed and
imaging accuracy of the PET system.

Cutaway diagram of lithium ion battery
Separator

Market share
Approximately

20

Market share

%

(third worldwide)
Note: Market share and worldwide position are Company estimates.
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Anode

Cathode

PET system

Approximately

40

%

(first worldwide)

C HEMICAL -R ELATED P RODUCTS

EMI SHIELDING FILM FOR PDPS

Electronics packaging is a technology and a process
related to the joining of printed wiring boards with
electronic components and LCDs. At Hitachi Chemical,
protective coating material for electronics packaging is a
generic term for materials such as solder resist for tape
carrier packaging (TCP), chip-on-film (COF) and

PLASTIC MOLDED PRODUCTS

ORGANIC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

PROTECTIVE COATING MATERIAL FOR ELECTRONICS PACKAGING

Plasma display panels (PDPs), which are well suited to
larger, thinner light-emitting screens, are promising as the
leading type of next-generation flat-panel display
replacing cathode ray tubes. However, because their lightemitting mechanism radiates a large amount of
electromagnetic interference (EMI) from each pixel, it is

semiconductor substrates, coverlay film for COF, and

necessary to install EMI shielding film on the surface of

conformal coatings. Each material covers the surfaces and

the screen.

connection points of circuits to help protect them from
heat, moisture and dust.

The Company’s EMI shielding film is made by the
photolithographic process, which uses etching to deposit

The Company provides many materials such as

copper foil with polyester film affixed. This method

flexible printed circuits, organic substrates for

achieves a high level of compatibility of light transmittance

semiconductor packaging, anisotropic conductive films

and EMI shielding performance. As a result, the

for LCDs, and other materials used in the electronics

Company’s film has been adopted by major PDP

packaging process. Consequently, when developing

manufacturers in Japan and overseas.

protective coating materials for electronics packaging,
the Company is able to quickly understand customer
requirements and to develop superior products.

（250μm pitch）
(Enlarged view)

Flexible printed circuits for COF

Market share in the TCP and COF fields

Approximately

35

%

(second worldwide)

Market share
Approximately

40

%

(first worldwide)

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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H
OUSING
E
QUIPME
>>> I N T E R V I E W W I T H T O R U N
What are the main strengths of Hitachi Housetec?
First, although we are a housing equipment manufacturer
ourselves, we have a network of marketing and servicing
subsidiaries, which is uncommon among other companies in
our industry. This means that we can quickly and vigorously
carry out business that directly reflects our company’s
strategies right up to the end-points of marketing and service
activities. Also, as a member of the Hitachi Group, Hitachi
Housetec can take advantage of the resources of the Group’s
lifestyle-related businesses. A major benefit of this is that the

Main Initiatives
> Develop new products tailored to

the needs of core customers

company can carry out product development integrating the
products of Hitachi Group companies such as Hitachi Home
& Life Solutions, Inc., and conduct business efficiently in
new fields such as the remodeling business, home electronics

> Strengthen competitiveness by

raising production and
distribution efficiency

and business targeting the elderly.
In addition, Hitachi Housetec is further strengthening
and utilizing its technology platform as a manufacturer that

> Focus on home remodeling

business

processes resins cultivated by the Hitachi Chemical Group
over many years. This allows us to develop original new
products using materials unique to our company. As one
example, we developed a new flooring material for baths that
is slip-resistant and easy to clean by molding a grid pattern
on the surface measured in micro-units. Following its launch
in fiscal 2004, this material is being used in our company’s
prefabricated bathroom units, and has been well received by
customers.

Please explain your basic business strategy under
the Mid-Term Management Plan.
In the near term, no major expansion is foreseen in the
number of new housing starts in Japan. However, by
strengthening our technological and sales capabilities to
develop new products and provide comprehensive services that
will satisfy customers, we will shift from a business structure
that is dependent on housing starts to one in which we can

18
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NT
AND
O M I YA M A

E NVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES

maintain steady growth by our own efforts.

be installed in a short construction time and with low noise.

Various needs are being generated from demand for homes

It exceeds the strict standards in Better Living for a Better

and housing that not only offer comfort but also support both

Society, a quality housing components certification system

safe and healthy lifestyles. Based on this knowledge, we will

newly established in Japan by The Center for Better Living.

focus on uncovering potential needs that customers themselves

Its positive evaluation has included the first recognition as a

may not even be aware of. We will work to develop and offer

“housing component that helps to realize a better society.”

new products that accurately respond to a broad range of
market needs.
In addition, we will give full play to the strengths I
mentioned earlier by taking advantage of the resources of the

In the remodeling business in the future, we will focus on
housing complexes and work to expand our business scope by
effectively utilizing showrooms to build demand for
remodeling detached housing.

Hitachi Group and Hitachi Chemical Group to quickly adopt
leading-edge technologies in response to the trend toward
home electronics. At the same time, in view of the shift to an
aging society, we aim to broaden our business by establishing
a foothold for participation in business targeting the elderly.

What key initiatives are you addressing?
The main customers for housing equipment can be divided
into two groups: people in their thirties purchasing a home
for the first time, and people in their fifties with purchasing
power who are remodeling their homes. We will systematically
develop and market new products with functions and designs
that match the preferences and needs of these customer groups,
such as prefabricated bathroom units and system kitchens for
detached houses. At the same time, our basic policy of locating
manufacturing and marketing bases close to markets will
improve efficiency in production, logistics and other areas in

TORU N OMIYAMA
President and CEO of Hitachi Housetec Co., Ltd.

order to further boost our business competitiveness.
In the current situation with no major growth expected in
new housing starts, our company is focusing on the remodeling
business. The home remodeling business is one in which
eliciting needs is difficult, but the bathroom renovation panel
repair kit we developed for housing complexes is highly
regarded for its features such as less waste during renovation,
a design that considers the needs of seniors, and the ability to

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

19

>>> H O U S I N G E Q U I P M E N T

AND

E N V I RO N M E N TA L F AC I L I T I E S : M A I N P RO D U C T S

The Bas Potion series is a system bathroom with a

The Trurio series is a system kitchen designed as

color tone designed to provide a sense of high quality

a place where the family can enjoy time together. Worktop

and relaxation. A wide range of variations is available in

variations include a 110 cm deck counter that gives a

design, size and options. For the wall material, the series

feeling of spaciousness, while door designs are available in

offers a range of modern designs with stainless steel metal

a total of four series and 17 colors, including mirrored

lines embedded in a surface of artificial marble, which

finishes. The drawers in the kitchen and storage furniture

has proven popular among customers. In addition, a fine,

use drawer rails with dampers, so they close smoothly and

micro-sized grid pattern is molded into the surface of the

quietly. This also softens the impact on tableware and

flooring material. This makes the floor slip-resistant,

stored items.

quick-drying and easy to clean.
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PREFABRICATED BATHROOM UNITS

SYSTEM BATHROOM “BAS POTION” SERIES
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>>>

RESEARCH

AND

D E V E L O P M E N T AC T I V I T I E S

Strengthening Hitachi Chemical’s Technology Platform
Through the development of numerous products since the start of business in 1912, the Hitachi Chemical Group
has built up a technology platform for materials, including molecular design, organic and inorganic synthesis,
purification and molding technologies, that forms the basis of its broad range of businesses today. To continue
developing useful new products linked to its technologies, the Group intends to further reinforce its technology
platform for materials and attain the optimum balance with market-oriented application technologies, one of the
Group’s strengths. Accordingly, the Laboratory for Polymer Technology was established Organization of Research & Development Center
as a section of the Research & Development Center. The Laboratory for Polymer
Research & Development Center
Technology will specialize in developing the Group’s technology platform for materials
and will conduct in-depth exploration of polymer technologies, a source of Hitachi
Laboratory for Photonics Materials
Chemical’s products, to develop new technologies with broad applicability. By doing so,
Laboratory for Electronic Packaging
it will support research and development of new products. Moreover, as an integrated
Materials & Technology
point for collecting and sending information from inside and outside the Group
Laboratory for Analytical Sciences
concerning its technology platform for materials, it will promote efficient development
Laboratory for Advanced Materials
of high-performance products that will allow the Hitachi Chemical Group to exhibit its
Laboratory for Circuit Boards & Materials
originality.
Laboratory for Polymer Technology

Raising R&D Efficiency by Redeploying Business Resources
The Hitachi Chemical Group is working to provide useful products on time by raising
its R&D efficiency. Previously, a large portion of R&D resources were allocated to expanding or maintaining current
products, and relatively few resources were devoted to exploratory R&D and development of basic technologies.
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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Therefore, starting in fiscal 2003, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
began classifying R&D projects into four stages —
incubation, growth, expansion and preservation — and
redeploying R&D resources. Under this classification, the
Company is raising the portion of investment in incubation
and growth stages. We plan to redeploy resources by
introducing this management system successively at Group
companies as well.
In addition, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. will focus investment of business resources on the 10 Strategic Development
Projects identified from the fields of telecommunications & displays, energy, life sciences and automobiles. One example
is a material system for ultra-thin multilayer printed wiring boards that enables their thickness to be reduced to less than
half. This product is expected to meet requirements for lighter, smaller electronic equipment, and the Company will cultivate
it as a core product in the Electronics-Related Products business.

The Hitachi Chemical Group’s Strategy for Intellectual Property
Intellectual property is a key asset in the Hitachi Chemical Group’s business strategy. The Group is implementing various
measures concerning intellectual property based on its policy of acquiring and actively using effective patents that correspond
to business strategies.
The Hitachi Chemical Group is working to conduct its business based on the “Material System Solution” business
model. We incorporate applications at customers and methods of use into research and development so that we can offer
solutions to customers through our materials and components. In parallel with this approach, we are building a powerful
network of patents, which encompasses not only materials and components, but also those materials and components
application processes for downstream products and their manufacturing apparatus sets. We then make strategic use of the
intellectual property we have acquired.
In addition, Hitachi Chemical has enhanced the content of patent applications, strengthened screenings of the necessity
of applications, and reexamined the necessity of patents held, to make intellectual property activities more efficient and
raise the quality of intellectual property. As a result, the number of domestic patent applications laid open to public
inspection decreased from 1,630 in fiscal 1999 to
Domestic Patent Applications Open to Public Inspection
1,043 in fiscal 2003.
(Applications)
1,800
Hitachi Chemical will continue to improve
efficiency in activities related to intellectual property
1,500
and make active patent applications centered on its
1,200
four main businesses including telecommunications
& displays. In addition, to succeed in global
900
competition, Hitachi Chemical will sharply increase
600
patent applications in the United States, the world’s
300
largest consumer market, and in fast-growing
overseas production and consumption regions such
0
00
01
02
03
04
as Korea, China and Taiwan region , where patent
(Years ended March 31)
disputes are expected to increase.
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>>>

C O R P O R AT E G OV E R N A N C E

The Hitachi Chemical Group believes that one of its most important management tasks is establishing a management
structure that is sound, highly transparent and capable of responding swiftly to changes in the market.
As part of these efforts, in June 2001 Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. appointed Executive Officers to clarify the business
responsibilities of Directors and managers, accelerated decision-making and business operations, and strengthened
supervisory functions. In June 2003, the Company adopted a “Company with Committees System” that separates
operational and supervisory functions by transferring substantial decision-making authority regarding business
operations from the Board of Directors to Executive Officers for speedy management with clear accountability. In
addition, the new system strengthens the supervisory function of the Board of Directors and ensures highly objective
and transparent management by establishing a Nominating Committee, an Audit Committee and a Compensation
Committee under the Board of Directors, all of which are composed primarily of Outside Directors.
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. is working to implement unified Group management and enhance supervisory functions
by dispatching its Outside Directors to the companies in the Hitachi Chemical Group that have adopted the Company
with Committees System.

Board of Directors and Outside Directors
The Board of Directors of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., which is composed of eight Directors including three Outside
Directors, holds regular monthly meetings and extraordinary meetings when necessary. In addition to approving the
budget and accounts, the Board of Directors uses the monthly and quarterly performance reports it receives from the
Executive Officers to supervise the budget and business results.
In order to further ensure the separation of operational and supervisory functions, the Company avoids the situation
where the Chairman of the Board serves concurrently as an Executive Officer, and limits the number of Executive
Officers concurrently serving as Directors to a necessary minimum of three.

Corporate Governance Structure of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
Supervision

Board of Directors (8 Directors* including 3 Outside Directors)
(*3 Directors serve concurrently as Executive Officers)

Nominating Committee
5 Directors including
3 Outside Directors

Main task
Decisions on candidates for
the Board of Directors

Execution President and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Vice President and Executive Officer
Vice President and Executive Officer
Executive Officer

CSR Office

Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

3 Directors including
2 Outside Directors

3 Directors including
2 Outside Directors

Main tasks

Main task
Decisions on compensation for
Directors and Executive Officers

Executive Officers’ Meeting
(An advisory body to the
Chief Executive Officer)

Audit of Directors and Executive
Officers’ business operations
Decision on candidates of Independent Auditors
●

●

Independent
Auditors
(Ernst & Young ShinNihon)

Studies issues of importance which
may affect the management of
Hitachi Chemical and the Hitachi
Chemical Group

Auditing
Office

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. has appointed the following individuals as Outside Directors in order to improve the
actual supervisory functions of management: Tsutomu Kanai, Chairman of the Board, Hitachi, Ltd.; Michiharu
Nakamura, Executive Vice President (Research & Development and New Businesses), Hitachi, Ltd.; and Masayoshi
Hanabusa, Chairman of the Board, Hitachi Capital Corporation. All are familiar with the Company’s management
conditions and knowledgeable in relevant fields such as R&D and finance where the Company has important
management subjects.

Audit System
The Audit Committee uses full-time staff independent of the Executive Officers to conduct audits in order to ensure
independence. In addition, the Auditing Office conducts internal audits ordered by the Chief Executive Officer, and
also works with the Audit Committee when instructed by the Committee.

Executive Officers’ Meeting
Composed of all Executive Officers, the Executive Officers’ Meeting acts as an advisory body to the Chief
Executive Officer in order to facilitate multifaceted studies into and decisions on issues of importance which may
affect the management of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. or the Hitachi Chemical Group. The Executive Officers’
Meeting holds regular meetings twice a month and extraordinary meetings when necessary to accelerate decisionmaking and business operations.

Compliance
Hitachi Chemical created the Ethics and Business Conduct Office in January 1998 and the Compliance
Management Office in May 2002. These groups produced the Corporate Ethics Guidebook and the Antitrust Law
Handbook to ensure that business activities, research and development and other corporate activities are conducted
properly. The Company has also worked to instill awareness of compliance through educational workshops for all
employees. From 2002 through 2003, in-house study meetings on compliance were held for about 1,000 employees
related to sales, with the aim of thorough Organization of CSR Activities
compliance awareness in all sales divisions.
Compliance Management Group
In April 2004, Hitachi Chemical Co.,
Ltd.
established the Corporate Social
Safety & Environmental Management Group
Responsibility Office to promote compliance,
President
CSR Office
social contributions, environmental protection
Corporate Export Regulation Group
and other issues of corporate social
Risk Management Group
responsibility company-wide.

Risk Management
The Risk Management Group takes risk countermeasures to proactively prevent risks that would hinder business
activities at Hitachi Group companies in Japan and overseas. The Risk Management Group is working to establish a
prevention system for all risks, an emergency response system and measures to prevent incidents from recurring.
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E N V I RO N M E N TA L M A N AG E M E N T A N D
S O C I A L C O N T R I BU T I O N A C T I V I T I E S
Environmental Management Activities
The Hitachi Chemical Group recognizes that global environmental problems are a major issue for all humankind,
and has made harmony with the environment a top management priority. Under the Company’s Environmental
Protection Action Guidelines enacted in 1993, and guided by the aim of creating a recycling-oriented society capable
of sustainable development, the Group promotes environmental management that raises the efficiency of its activities.
The Group is also active in areas such as continuously improving its environmental management systems based on
ISO 14001, working to achieve zero emissions, complying with the Pollution Release and Transfer Register (PRTR)
Law, and expanding the range of environmentally friendly products.

Zero Emissions Activities
The Hitachi Chemical Group’s efforts to achieve zero emissions focus on reducing to zero not only the final disposal
volume of wastes, but also the losses of resources used throughout the entire production process. Targets for zero emissions
are a final landfill disposal rate of 1.0 percent or less and a reduction in the volume of industrial waste disposed to under
5 tons annually at each Group manufacturing facility by fiscal 2005. As of the end of fiscal 2003, four manufacturing
facilities of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. as well as six Group company sites had achieved zero emissions.
CO2 Emissions and Index of CO2 Emissions per Unit Production Amount

Index: 1991=100

Non-consolidated
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2011 (Years ended March 31)

Volume of Industrial Waste Disposed and Final Landfill Disposal Rate
Final landfill disposal rate (%) =
37.3

Non-consolidated

Consolidated**

Final landfill disposal rate (Non-consolidated)
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35
30

10

5.0

8.5
7.2
2.6

5
2.1
0

1992

2000

1.2
2001

4

6.1

2.4

4.4
0.9
2002
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Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

1

0.02
2011 (Years ended March 31)

* As of this annual report, calculated using a coefficient for the average of all power sources for each fiscal year.
** Consolidated figures represent combined data for Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and 13 main group companies with a significant impact on the environment.
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Final landfill disposal rate (%)

Volume of industrial waste disposed

(Kilotons)
15

Volume of industrial waste disposed
×100
Amount of waste generated

Compliance with the PRTR Law
As a member of the Japan Chemical Industry Association, the Hitachi Chemical Group has been voluntarily working
to reduce emissions of chemical substances since before the enactment of the PRTR Law. The Group has set the target
of reducing the volume of chemical emissions to 70 percent of fiscal 2000 levels or below by fiscal 2005 through measures
including the introduction of a solvent recovery system and an exhaust treatment system starting from fiscal 2003. The
Group also conducts risk assessment regarding emissions and works to reduce the possibility of the inadvertent use of
hazardous substances whose use is restricted by law.

Expanding the Range of Green Products
As part of its management philosophy of contributing to Lithium ion battery for hybrid electric vehicle
(Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.)
society by developing revolutionary, high-quality products, the
Hitachi Chemical Group promotes the development of products
and technologies that help to solve global environmental problems.
The Group has implemented Green Product Assessment, which
defines as environmentally friendly products those that have met or
exceeded standards for eight evaluation criteria, including resource conservation and recyclability.
Through these efforts, the Group achieved its target for green products to account for 60 percent or
more of sales in fiscal 2003. The Group will continue to work to develop new green products to
expand its lineup.

Environmentally friendly halogen-free
multilayer printed wiring boards

Publication of Social and Environmental Report
The Hitachi Chemical Group continues to improve trust and increase communication
with society in order to achieve sustainable growth. As part of these efforts, the Company
began publishing an annual environmental report in 1999. From fiscal 2004, the report is
compiled as an enhanced social and environmental report, covering social and financial
information as well as environmental and safety matters. Group companies Shin-Kobe Electric
Machinery Co., Ltd., Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd. and Hitachi AIC Inc. also publish
environmental reports.

Social and Environmental Report 2004

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
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Social Contribution Activities
The Hitachi Chemical Group is deeply aware of its role as a responsible member of society, and strives to realize a
truly prosperous society as a sound corporate citizen. Based on this fundamental philosophy, the Group carries out
a variety of social contribution activities.

Community Activities
The Hitachi Chemical Group helps to enhance local
communities through participation in numerous activities, including
support for regional festivals and fireworks shows, which promote
communication with people in the communities.
Hitachi Chemical is also active in providing sponsorship for
community activities. Its factory festivals attract the participation of
residents from the surrounding area, and the Group organizes factory
tours and table tennis lessons for nearby elementary school students
and carries out employee cleanup campaigns.

Support for Cultural and Sports Activities

Sponsorship of factory festivals
provides opportunities for closer
interaction with local residents.
Annual sponsorship of a Junior Soccer
Tournament for primary-school
children in local communities

Employees carry out a “clean up
campaign” in the vicinity of their office.

The Hitachi Chemical Group supports and sponsors cultural and sports activities both in Japan and overseas. These
activities range from sponsorship of performing arts and symphony orchestras to support for marathons and youth
soccer tournaments.

Support for Foundations
As part of the Hitachi Group, the Hitachi Chemical Group provides assistance to individuals, companies and groups
conducting social contribution and environmental activities through its support for foundations established by the
Hitachi Group.

Scholarship Program
In 2003, European subsidiary Hitachi Chemical Europe SRI Index
GmbH set up the Hitachi Chemical Europe Environmental In March 2004, Hitachi Chemical’s efforts in areas
Change and Management Scholarship for international students including strengthening compliance and corporate
governance, environmental preservation and social
studying environment change and management at Oxford responsibility activities were evaluated and included in the
University’s Linacre College. The program is designed to foster FTSE4Good Index Series, a socially responsible
environmental change and management specialists who will investment (SRI) index prepared by FTSE International,
a major stock index company in the United Kingdom.
contribute widely to environmental protection and socioeconomic
development in their own countries after graduation.
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S I X -Y E A R S U M M A R Y

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(except per share data)
(Note 1)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

2004

For the year:
Net sales..............................................

¥ 521,358 ¥494,226 ¥480,777 ¥586,314 ¥544,837 ¥524,219

$4,918,472

Operating income ...............................

33,774

24,930

13,048

45,814

35,058

24,656

318,623

Net income .........................................

15,784

8,644

3,141

13,022

12,587

8,096

148,906

Cash dividends declared ......................

2,487

2,279

2,072

2,021

2,021

1,819

23,462

intangible fixed assets ........................

26,331

23,576

27,349

37,920

29,885

25,590

248,406

Depreciation and amortization ............

27,035

28,151

29,628

29,188

31,155

28,724

255,047

Research and development expenses ....

24,908

22,933

22,894

22,408

21,302

21,163

234,981

¥ 393,835 ¥407,148 ¥418,408 ¥457,117 ¥444,178 ¥418,304

$3,715,425

Additions to tangible and

At year-end:
Total assets..........................................
Total liabilities ....................................

216,144

240,798

254,892

299,526

298,520

298,918

2,039,094

Interest-bearing liabilities ....................

46,997

64,301

90,573

105,737

126,872

149,021

443,368

Total stockholders’ equity ...................

157,311

146,443

143,692

134,095

124,035

100,795

1,484,066

Per share data:
Net income (basic) (Note 2)................

¥

75.47 ¥

39.91 ¥

Net income (diluted) (Note 2) ............

75.44

39.54

Cash dividends declared ......................

12.00

Total stockholders’ equity ...................

15.28 ¥

64.42 ¥

62.27 ¥

40.05

$

0.71

—

63.53

61.42

39.34

0.71

11.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

9.00

0.11

758.44

704.87

693.35

663.34

613.64

498.63

7.16

Return on sales (%) .............................

3.0

1.7

0.7

2.2

2.3

1.5

Return on equity (%) ..........................

10.4

6.0

2.3

10.1

10.6

8.3

Return on assets (%) ...........................

3.9

2.1

0.7

2.9

2.9

1.9

Stockholders’ equity ratio (%) .............

39.9

36.0

34.3

29.3

27.9

24.1

Number of employees ...........................

16,764

17,061

17,287

18,390

18,415

19,285

Value indicators:

Notes:1. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥106 =US$1, the approximate exchange
rate at the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2004.
2. Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No. 2, “Calculations of Earnings Per Share of the current net earnings.”
See Note 1 (m) to the consolidated financial statements on page 40.
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>>> M A N AG E M E N T ’ S D I S C U S S I O N A N D A N A LY S I S O F

O P E R AT I O N S

(For the year ended March 31, 2004)
■ FINANCIAL STRATEGY

The financial policies of Hitachi Chemical
Co., Ltd. (hereafter, the “Company”) and its
consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, “Hitachi
Chemical”) are designed to maintain a sound
balance sheet by raising asset utilization
efficiency, maintaining appropriate liquidity
and securing appropriate capital for operating
needs.
Of particular note, Hitachi Chemical
reduced interest-bearing liabilities by 26.9
percent year-on-year, or ¥17.3 billion, to ¥47.0
billion during the year ended March 31, 2004.
Given that cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the past fiscal year stood at ¥46.2 billion,
Hitachi Chemical has reduced interest-bearing
liabilities to the point where it is debt-free for
all practical purposes.
Hitachi Chemical will continue to strive to
further reduce interest-bearing liabilities by
raising the efficiency of asset utilization and
other measures. At the same time, while
considering the soundness of its balance sheet,
Hitachi Chemical exercises sufficient care in
obtaining external financing to smoothly fund
both operations and the investments required
to meet its objectives, including building a
balanced business portfolio.
■ RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NET SALES

For the year ended March 31, 2004, net sales
increased 5.5 percent year-on-year, or ¥27.1
billion, to ¥521.4 billion. A substantial increase
in sales of Electronics-Related Products was a

primary factor supporting the increase in net
sales. Overseas sales increased 18.3 percent yearon-year, or ¥19.6 billion, to ¥126.6 billion. The
ratio of overseas sales to net sales increased 260
basis points to 24.3 percent.
Results in each business segment follow
below. Sales data for each segment exclude
intersegment sales.

ELECTRONICS-RELATED PRODUCTS
Segment sales increased 10.1 percent yearon-year, or ¥20.8 billion, to ¥225.8 billion, and
increased 180 basis points as a percentage of total
net sales to 43.3 percent.
SEMICONDUCTOR- AND
DISPLAY-RELATED MATERIALS
Successful efforts to create relationships
with new customers resulted in higher sales of
slurry for chemical mechanical planarization
of semiconductor wafers. Sales of die bonding
materials and epoxy molding compounds also
increased year-on-year against a backdrop of
strong demand. Continued solid expansion in
liquid crystal-related markets supported yearon-year growth in sales of anisotropic
conductive films for liquid crystal displays
(LCDs). In addition, sales of light guides that
increase the brightness of LCDs increased
strongly year-on-year due to expanded
demand for use in mobile phones.
Sales of epoxy molding compounds
produced by Hitachi Chemical (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd. remained at the level of the
previous fiscal year, but decreased in yen

Net sales

AND

terms due to the impact of foreign currency
exchange rates.
PRINTED WIRING BOARDS AND
RELATED PRODUCTS
Sales of copper-clad laminates for printed
wiring boards increased year-on-year due largely
to firm demand for environmentally friendly
halogen-free products for use in mobile phones.
Sales of multiwire boards increased year-onyear, supported by demand for use in
semiconductor testing and high-performance
server applications. Sales of flexible printed
wiring boards also increased substantially yearon-year. While domestic sales volume of
photosensitive dry films for printed wiring
boards increased despite the shift to in-market
manufacturing of products for China, lower
sales prices kept domestic sales at about the same
level as in the previous fiscal year.
Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
began producing photosensitive dry films for
printed wiring boards, and increased sales yearon-year through steady efforts to meet demand
in China. Sales of photosensitive dry films for
printed wiring boards produced by Hitachi
Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd. were level year-onyear, but decreased in yen terms due to the
appreciation of the yen during the fiscal year.
Hitachi AIC Inc.’s sales of printed wiring boards
decreased year-on-year despite firm demand for
use in automobiles and mobile phones because
of reduced production of unprofitable products.
Sales of multilayer printed wiring boards
produced by Hitachi Chemical Asia-Pacific Pte.
Ltd. decreased year-on-year despite increased

Operating income

Net income

(Billions of yen)

(Billions of yen)

(Billions of yen)
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sales for use in routers, servers, and other types
of highly functional products, because prices
decreased and this company emphasized
business development based on specialization in
high-value-added products.

Polymer Co., Ltd. drew support from higher
sales of environmentally friendly products, but
lower sales of products for multilayer flexible
printed wiring boards resulted in an overall yearon-year decline in sales.

OTHERS
Sales of capacitors produced by Hitachi AIC
Inc. decreased year-on-year due to lower
overseas sales of tantalum capacitors.

INORGANIC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS
Sales of carbon anode material for lithium
ion batteries used in mobile phones,
notebook computers and other products rose
in tandem with an increase in the number of
large-scale customers using this product.
Sales of GSO single crystals for positron
emission tomography medical equipment
remained at prior-year levels. Sales of
automotive disc brake pads manufactured by
the Company decreased year-on-year due to
lower demand in the auto repair market. Sales
of carbon brushes were lower year-on-year
due to reduced demand for use in rolling
stock motors.
Sales of the disc brake pads manufactured
by Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd. increased
year-on-year because of expanded use among
large-scale customers. Sales of graphite
coating for cathode ray tubes (CRTs)
manufactured by Hitachi Powdered Metals
Co., Ltd. decreased year-on-year as a result of
lower CRT production.

CHEMICAL-RELATED PRODUCTS
Sales in this segment increased 2.2 percent
year-on-year, or ¥4.6 billion, to ¥213.1 billion,
and decreased 130 basis points as a percentage
of total net sales to 40.9 percent.
ORGANIC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS
Sales of electrical insulating varnishes
remained firm due to their use in protecting
the circuitry of electrical equipment and
interconnects. Sales of specialty chemicals
such as acrylic monomers for applications
including photosensitive dry films for printed
wiring boards and cement additives increased,
supported by greater diversity in their
application. Sales of environmentally friendly
UV-cured acrylic resin increased year-onyear, centered on use in coating flooring. Sales
of unsaturated polyester resins remained at the
level of the previous fiscal year due to a lack
of growth in demand for use in housing
equipment. Sales of expandable polystyrene
beads decreased year-on-year due to lower
demand.
Sales of adhesives produced by Hitachi Kasei

PLASTIC MOLDED PRODUCTS
Sales of EMI shielding films for plasma
display panels rose substantially year-onyear due to market expansion. Adhesive
films also performed well, supported by their
use in protecting the surface of optical panels

Net income per share (basic)
(Yen)

80

75.47

Total assets

OTHERS
Sales of powdered metal products
manufactured by Hitachi Powdered Metals
Co., Ltd. increased year-on-year because of
increased demand for components for
automobiles. Sales of Shin-Kobe Electric
Machinery Co., Ltd.’s rechargeable batteries
decreased year-on-year because the cool
summer and mild winter reduced demand
in the automobile repair market and those
prices dropped.

HOUSING EQUIPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES
Sales in this segment increased 2.1 percent
year-on-year, or ¥1.7 billion, to ¥82.5 billion,
and decreased 50 basis points as a percentage of
total net sales to 15.8 percent.
Sales of prefabricated bathroom units
increased year-on-year due to their growing use
in construction of detached houses. Sales of
system kitchens increased year-on-year due to
favorable performance by products that
incorporate peripheral equipment such as
electromagnetic cooking appliances and
dishwashers. Sales of domestic wastewater
treatment systems were essentially unchanged
year-on-year because of flat demand.

Return on assets (ROA)

(Billions of yen)

(%)
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used in LCDs. Sales of automotive molded
parts rose year-on-year because of expanded
demand for use in trucks. Sales of crosslinked
polyethylene foam were essentially
unchanged year-on-year due to the impact
of reduced demand for use in insulating air
conditioners.
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COST OF SALES AND SELLING,
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES
Cost of sales increased 4.7 percent yearon-year, or ¥17.2 billion, to ¥385.3 billion,
and decreased 60 basis points as a percentage
of net sales to 73.9 percent. Selling, general
and administrative expenses increased 1.1
percent year-on-year, or ¥1.1 billion, to
¥102.3 billion, and decreased 90 basis points
as a percentage of net sales to 19.6 percent.
In addition to increased sales of high-valueadded Electronics-Related Products, factors
supporting year-on-year improvement
included ongoing structural reforms that
have generated benefits such as enhanced
productivity. Research and development
expenses increased 8.6 percent year-on-year,
or ¥2.0 billion, to ¥24.9 billion, and rose 20
basis points as a percentage of net sales to 4.8
percent.

OPERATING INCOME
Operating income increased 35.5 percent
year-on-year, or ¥8.8 billion, to ¥33.8 billion,
and rose 150 basis points as a percentage of
net sales to 6.5 percent.
By segment, operating income for
Electronics-Related Products increased 70.5
percent, or ¥9.6 billion, to ¥23.3 billion. The
ratio of segment operating income to segment
net sales increased 360 basis points to 10.3
percent. Operating income for ChemicalRelated Products decreased 11.5 percent yearon-year, or ¥1.1 billion, to ¥8.7 billion. The
ratio of segment operating income to segment
net sales decreased 60 basis points to 4.1
percent. Operating income for Housing

Inventories, Inventory turnover
Inventories

Inventory turnover

Equipment and Environmental Facilities
increased 24.7 percent, or ¥0.3 billion, to ¥1.7
billion. The ratio of segment operating
income to segment net sales increased 40 basis
points to 2.1 percent.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Other expenses totaled ¥2.1 billion, an
improvement of ¥3.1 billion compared with
¥5.2 billion for the previous fiscal year. Net
interest income, defined as interest and dividend
income less interest expenses, totaled ¥4 million,
compared to net interest expense of ¥0.3 billion
for the previous fiscal year. Equity in earnings
of affiliated companies totaled ¥1.1 billion
compared to equity in loss of affiliated
companies of ¥0.2 billion for the previous fiscal
year, reflecting the improved performance of
affiliates accounted for using the equity method.
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
of the Company and of Shin-Kobe Electric
Machinery Co., Ltd. increased by ¥0.9 billion,
while devaluation loss of securities decreased by
¥0.6 billion.
As a result, income before income taxes and
minority interests increased 60.4 percent yearon-year, or ¥11.9 billion, to ¥31.6 billion.

NET INCOME
Income taxes increased 44.5 percent yearon-year, or ¥4.5 billion, to ¥14.5 billion, due to
Hitachi Chemical’s improved performance.
The effective tax rate, defined as the ratio of
income taxes to income before income taxes and
minority interests, decreased 500 basis points to
45.8 percent. Minority interests increased 29.1
percent year-on-year, or ¥0.3 billion, to ¥1.4
billion.
As a result, net income increased 82.6
percent, or ¥7.1 billion, to a record ¥15.8

Additions to fixed assets, R&D expenses
Additions to fixed assets

billion. The ratio of net income to net sales
increased 130 basis points to 3.0 percent.
Return on total stockholders’ equity (ROE)
increased 440 basis points to 10.4 percent, and
return on total assets (ROA) increased 180 basis
points to 3.9 percent. Net income per share
(basic) totaled ¥75.47, compared to ¥39.91 for
the previous fiscal year.
■ FINANCIAL CONDITION

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
As of March 31, 2004, total assets decreased
3.3 percent from a year earlier, or ¥13.3 billion,
to ¥393.8 billion. Main factors in the decrease
included a one-time addition to Hitachi
Chemical’s pension plan assets and a related
decrease in cash and cash equivalents that
reduced current assets.
Current assets decreased 2.8 percent from
a year earlier, or ¥6.0 billion, to ¥209.6 billion.
Cash and cash equivalents decreased ¥17.2
billion from a year earlier to ¥46.2 billion, for
the reason discussed above. Trade receivables
increased ¥7.4 billion from a year earlier to
¥107.3 billion. Inventories increased ¥0.9
billion from a year earlier to ¥36.6 billion. As
a result of Group efforts to raise productivity,
inventory turnover improved to 14.4 times
from 13.8 times in the previous fiscal year. The
allowance for doubtful receivables increased
¥0.1 billion from a year earlier to ¥3.8 billion.
Net property, plant and equipment
decreased 3.6 percent from a year earlier, or
¥5.0 billion, to ¥134.0 billion as a result of
greater focus in capital investment. Net
property, plant and equipment turnover
improved to 3.8 times from 3.4 times in the
previous fiscal year. Investments and other
assets decreased 3.1 percent from a year earlier,

Total stockholders’ equity

R&D expenses
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or ¥1.4 billion, to ¥43.6 billion. While
investments in securities increased ¥2.9
billion, deferred tax benefit, which is included
in other assets, decreased ¥11.2 billion, among
other factors.
Total liabilities as of March 31, 2004
decreased 10.2 percent from a year earlier, or
¥24.7 billion, to ¥216.1 billion.
Current liabilities decreased 5.6 percent
from a year earlier, or ¥9.2 billion, to ¥155.9
billion. Factors in the change included a
reduction in short-term debt, which decreased
¥12.7 billion from a year earlier to ¥16.3
billion. The current ratio, defined as the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, increased
to 134.4 percent from 130.6 percent a year
earlier. Working capital, defined as current
assets minus current liabilities, increased 6.3
percent, or ¥3.2 billion, to ¥53.7 billion. Longterm debt decreased ¥3.9 billion from a year
earlier to ¥26.1 billion, primarily due to
repayment of debentures and reduction in
long-term borrowings. As a result, total
interest-bearing liabilities, defined as the sum
of short-term debt, debentures to be repaid
within one year, debentures and long-term
debt, decreased ¥17.3 billion from a year earlier
to ¥47.0 billion.
As of March 31, 2004, stockholders’ equity
increased 7.4 percent from a year earlier, or
¥10.9 billion, to ¥157.3 billion. The ratio of
stockholders’ equity to total assets increased to
39.9 percent from 36.0 percent a year earlier.
The debt-to-equity ratio, defined as total
interest-bearing liabilities divided by
stockholders’ equity, improved to 0.3 times
from 0.4 times a year earlier. Stockholders’
equity per share of common stock outstanding
as of March 31, 2004 increased to ¥758.44
from ¥704.87 a year earlier.

Return on equity (ROE)

CASH FLOWS
Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31,
2004 decreased 27.1 percent from a year earlier,
or ¥17.2 billion, to ¥46.2 billion.
Net cash provided by operating activities was
¥27.3 billion, a decrease of ¥28.1 billion from
the previous fiscal year. Primary factors included
higher trade receivables as a result of increased
sales and the one-time addition to Hitachi
Chemical’s pension plan assets, which offset
improved performance during the fiscal year
and the resulting substantial increase in income
before taxes.
Net cash used in investing activities was
¥23.4 billion, an increase of ¥4.2 billion from
the previous fiscal year. A primary factor was an
increase of ¥2.1 billion in capital expenditures.
Net cash used in financing activities
amounted to ¥19.6 billion, a decrease of ¥8.5
billion from the previous fiscal year. While
Hitachi Chemical continued to strengthen its
financial structure by reducing interest-bearing
liabilities, repayment of debentures was lower
than in the previous fiscal year.

recognition of the fortieth anniversary of the
establishment of the Company, for a total cash
dividend per share of ¥11.00.
■ RISK MANAGEMENT

Hitachi Chemical uses derivatives as it
deems necessary to reduce the remaining risk
exposure after appropriate measures have been
taken to balance credits and obligations.
Hitachi Chemical’s derivative instruments
are interest-rate swaps and forward exchange
contracts for the purpose of hedging the risk of
fluctuation in interest and currency markets.
The major risks to which such derivative
transactions are subject are market risk and
credit risk. The derivative transactions Hitachi
Chemical uses are intended to hedge against
market risk related to balance sheet assets and
liabilities.
Details of the status of transaction positions
and valuation of unrealized profit and loss are
regularly reported to the Board of Directors.

■ DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers its operating
environment, performance and future business
prospects in allocating earnings to dividends and
internal capital reserves. The Company uses
internal capital reserves to research and develop
promising new high-value-added products, add
vitality to existing businesses, and build on its
strong financial structure.
The Company increased cash dividends per
share of common stock to ¥12.00 for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2004. In the previous
fiscal year, the Company paid a regular dividend
of ¥10.00 per common share, and a
commemorative dividend of ¥1.00 per share in

Stockholders’ equity ratio

Interest-bearing liabilities, Debt/equity ratio
Interest-bearing liabilities

(%)

(%)

12

40

39.9

Debt/equity ratio

(Billions of yen)

(Times)

150

1.5

120

1.2

90

0.9

10.4
10
30
8
6

20
60

4
10

99 00 01 02 03 04
(Years ended March 31)

0

0.3

30

2
0

47.0

99 00 01 02 03 04
(As of March 31)

0

99 00 01 02 03 04

0.6
0.3
0

(As of March 31)
Note: Interest-bearing liabilities do not include notes and bills discounted.
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C O N S O L I DAT E D B A L A N C E S H E E T S
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2004 and 2003

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

ASSETS

2004

2003

2004

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1 (c)) .......................................................

¥ 46,205

¥ 63,421

$ 435,896

Notes.......................................................................................................

16,167

15,730

152,519

Accounts .................................................................................................

91,156

84,166

859,962

107,323

99,896

1,012,481

3,750

3,696

35,377

Net receivables .....................................................................................

103,573

96,200

977,104

Inventories (Note 4) ...................................................................................

36,598

35,708

345,264

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 5) .....................................

23,183

20,232

218,708

Total current assets ..............................................................................

209,559

215,561

1,976,972

Property, plant and equipment, at cost (Notes 6 and 7) .............................

522,581

522,431

4,930,009

Less accumulated depreciation ....................................................................

388,535

383,359

3,665,424

Net property, plant and equipment......................................................

134,046

139,072

1,264,585

Cost in excess of net assets acquired ............................................................

2,489

3,176

23,481

Other intangible assets ................................................................................

4,121

4,317

38,877

Total intangible assets ..........................................................................

6,610

7,493

62,358

Affiliated companies’ stock under the equity method ..................................

4,644

3,758

43,811

Investments in securities (Note 3) ...............................................................

11,189

8,263

105,557

Other assets (Note 5) ..................................................................................

28,765

34,212

271,368

Less allowance for doubtful receivables .......................................................

978

1,211

9,226

Total investments and other assets .......................................................

43,620

45,022

411,510

............................................................................................................

¥393,835

¥407,148

$3,715,425

Trade receivables:

Less allowance for doubtful receivables

Intangible assets:

Investments and other assets:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2004

2003

2004

Current liabilities:
Short-term debt (Note 7)............................................................................

¥ 16,310

¥ 29,002

$ 153,868

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) ...............................................

4,587

5,291

43,274

Notes.......................................................................................................

408

1,144

3,849

Accounts .................................................................................................

57,297

52,087

540,538

Accrued expenses ........................................................................................

26,225

23,148

247,406

Income taxes (Note 5).................................................................................

4,780

10,562

45,094

Other current liabilities...............................................................................

46,271

43,835

436,518

Total current liabilities .........................................................................

155,878

165,069

1,470,547

Long-term debt (Note 7) ..............................................................................

26,100

30,008

246,226

Retirement and severance benefits (Note 8) ................................................

30,550

41,419

288,208

Other liabilities (Note 5) ..............................................................................

3,616

4,302

34,113

Total liabilities .....................................................................................

216,144

240,798

2,039,094

Minority interests .........................................................................................

20,380

19,907

192,265

207,251,708 shares in 2003 (Note 9) ........................................

15,288

15,284

144,226

Capital surplus (Note 9) .............................................................................

34,178

34,174

322,434

Earnings surplus (Note 10) .........................................................................

112,101

99,111

1,057,557

Net unrealized holding gain on securities....................................................

2,603

1,067

24,557

Foreign currency translation adjustments....................................................

(6,821)

(3,165)

(64,349)

Trade payables:

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock:
Authorized—800,000,000 shares;
Issued—207,256,708 shares in 2004 and

157,349

146,471

1,484,425

Treasury stock, at cost, 31,517 shares in 2004
and 24,755 shares in 2003 (Note 11) ......................................................
Total stockholders’ equity ....................................................................

(38)

(28)

(359)

157,311

146,443

1,484,066

¥393,835

¥407,148

$3,715,425

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
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C O N S O L I DAT E D S TAT E M E N T S

OF

INCOME

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2004

2003

2002

2004

Net sales ................................................................................
Cost of sales (Note 14) ..........................................................
Gross profit .....................................................................

¥521,358
385,308
136,050

¥494,226
368,095
126,131

¥480,777
366,225
114,552

$4,918,472
3,634,981
1,283,491

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 14) .......
Operating income............................................................

102,276
33,774

101,201
24,930

101,504
13,048

964,868
318,623

Other income (expenses):
Interest income ..................................................................
Dividend income ...............................................................
Equity in earnings (loss) of affiliated companies .................
Exchange gain (loss) ............................................................
Interest expenses .................................................................
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment .............
Devaluation loss of securities ..............................................
Product warranty expenses .................................................
Gain (loss) on sale of investments in securities .......................
Royalty ...............................................................................
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment ...................
Other, net ..........................................................................

830
228
1,059
(570)
(1,054)
(2,037)
(158)
(2,208)
255
867
1,025
(373)
(2,136)
31,638

772
250
(227)
(773)
(1,279)
(1,904)
(716)
(1,244)
(59)
545
94
(663)
(5,204)
19,726

698
202
(359)
457
(2,079)
(1,347)
(614)
(343)
32
569
193
(1,137)
(3,728)
9,320

7,830
2,151
9,991
(5,378)
(9,943)
(19,217)
(1,491)
(20,830)
2,406
8,179
9,670
(3,519)
(20,151)
298,472

Income taxes (Note 5) ...........................................................
Income before minority interests ....................................

14,495
17,143

10,029
9,697

5,127
4,193

136,745
161,727

Minority interests .................................................................
Net income .....................................................................

1,359
¥ 15,784

1,052
3,141

12,821
$ 148,906

Income before income taxes and minority interests .........

¥

1,053
8,644

¥

U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Yen

Basic net income per share (Note 13)...................................
Diluted net income per share (Note 13) ..............................
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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¥

75.47
75.44

¥

39.91
39.54

¥

15.28
—

$

0.71
0.71

C O N S O L I DAT E D S TAT E M E N T S

OF

S TO C K H O L D E R S ’ E QU I T Y

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2004

2003

2002

2004

Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year................................................
Issuance of common stock (Note 9) ....................................
Conversion of convertible debentures (Note 9) ...................
Balance at end of year .........................................................

¥ 15,284
4
—
15,288

¥ 15,284
—
0
15,284

¥ 15,029
255
—
15,284

$ 144,188
38
—
144,226

Capital surplus:
Balance at beginning of year................................................
Issuance of common stock (Note 9) ....................................
Conversion of convertible debentures (Note 9) ...................
Gain on sale of treasury stock (Note 11) ............................
Balance at end of year .........................................................

34,174
4
—
0
34,178

34,174
—
0
—
34,174

27,342
6,832
—
—
34,174

322,396
38
—
0
322,434

Earnings surplus:
Balance at beginning of year................................................
Net income .........................................................................
Cash dividends (Note 10) ...................................................
Bonuses to directors (Note 10)............................................
Balance at end of year .........................................................

99,111
15,784
(2,487)
(307)
112,101

92,818
8,644
(2,072)
(279)
99,111

92,117
3,141
(2,047)
(393)
92,818

935,009
148,906
(23,462)
(2,896)
1,057,557

Net unrealized holding gain on securities:
Balance at beginning of year................................................
Net change during the year .................................................
Balance at end of year .........................................................

1,067
1,536
2,603

1,849
(782)
1,067

2,083
(234)
1,849

10,066
14,491
24,557

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year................................................
Net change during the year .................................................
Balance at end of year .........................................................

(3,165)
(3,656)
(6,821)

(424)
(2,741)
(3,165)

(2,471)
2,047
(424)

(29,858)
(34,491)
(64,349)

Treasury stock:
Balance at beginning of year................................................
Increase in treasury stock (Note 11) ....................................
Balance at end of year .........................................................

(28)
(10)
(38)

(9)
(19)
(28)

(5)
(4)
(9)

(264)
(95)
(359)

Total stockholders’ equity................................................

¥157,311

¥146,443

¥143,692

$1,484,066

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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C O N S O L I DAT E D S TAT E M E N T S

OF

CASH FLOWS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

Cash flows from operating activities (Note 15):
Net income ...................................................................................
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..................................................
Devaluation loss of marketable securities ...................................
Deferred income taxes ...............................................................
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net .............
Income applicable to minority interests .....................................
Equity in (earnings) loss of affiliated companies ........................
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables.......................................
(Increase) decrease in inventories ...............................................
(Increase) decrease in other current assets ..................................
Increase (decrease) in trade payables ..........................................
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
and retirement and severance benefits......................................
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes ...............................
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities .........................................
Other ........................................................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities ...............................

2003

2002

2004

¥15,784

¥ 8,644

¥ 3,141

$148,906

27,035
158
8,394
1,151
1,359
(1,059)
(9,450)
(1,547)
1,260
6,014

28,151
716
(2,329)
1,845
1,053
227
4,355
(289)
(1,695)
6,103

29,628
614
(2,600)
1,174
1,052
359
29,826
11,049
(1,525)
(14,306)

255,047
1,491
79,189
10,858
12,821
(9,991)
(89,151)
(14,594)
11,887
56,736

(7,572)
(5,782)
1,690
(10,088)
27,347

468
3,816
2,280
2,094
55,439

(1,348)
(9,173)
(3,112)
(142)
44,637

(71,434)
(54,547)
15,943
(95,170)
257,991

—
(24,780)
1,732

—
(22,646)
2,754

693
(27,825)
2,207

—
(233,774)
16,340

Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease in short-term investments ...............................................
Capital expenditures......................................................................
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ....................
Purchase of subsidiaries’ and affiliated companies’ stock
and investments in securities .....................................................
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries’ and affiliated companies’
common stock and investments in securities ..............................
(Increase) decrease in other investments ........................................
(Increase) decrease in short-term loans receivable ..........................
Decrease in long-term loans receivable ..........................................
Other ............................................................................................
Net cash used in investing activities .......................................

(646)

(39)

(2,521)

(6,094)

452
681
(72)
130
(855)
(23,358)

940
763
212
69
(1,176)
(19,123)

180
(930)
(160)
1,080
(2,661)
(29,937)

4,264
6,425
(679)
1,226
(8,066)
(220,358)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt............................................
Proceeds from long-term debt .......................................................
Payments on long-term debt .........................................................
Dividends paid to stockholders......................................................
Dividends paid to minority stockholders of subsidiaries ................
Other ............................................................................................
Net cash used in financing activities.......................................
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...........
Cash and cash equivalents of newly consolidated subsidiaries...........
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents...................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...............................
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........................................

(12,201)
1,000
(5,508)
(2,487)
(416)
(2)
(19,614)
(1,591)
—
(17,216)
63,421
¥46,205

(12,799)
682
(13,488)
(2,072)
(428)
(19)
(28,124)
(1,103)
—
7,089
56,332
¥63,421

3,608
200
(19,938)
(2,047)
(532)
(6)
(18,715)
757
39
(3,219)
59,551
¥56,332

(115,104)
9,434
(51,962)
(23,462)
(3,925)
(19)
(185,038)
(15,010)
—
(162,415)
598,311
$435,896

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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N OT E S

TO

C O N S O L I DAT E D F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and consolidated subsidiaries are prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects
as to the application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled from the
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.
In addition, for the convenience of readers outside Japan, the consolidated financial statements, including the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, include certain reclassifications and additional information which is not required under
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
(b) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and those of its majority-owned subsidiaries,
whether directly or indirectly controlled. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
Most of the investments in affiliated companies are stated at their underlying equity value, and the appropriate portion of
the earnings of such companies is included in consolidated income. The investments in affiliated companies which do not
materially affect consolidated income and equity are stated at cost.
The cost in excess of net assets acquired by the Company is being amortized using the straight-line method over its estimated useful period by each individual investment in subsidiaries, not exceeding twenty years or, if the amount is not material, charged immediately to consolidated income.
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with insignificant risk
of change in value, which have maturities of generally three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. Due to
this reason, certain investments, which were reported in the MOF report as other current assets in the amount of ¥2,999
million in 2003 were reclassified as cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated financial statements.
(d) Investments in Securities
The Company accounts for financial instruments in accordance with “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments”
issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. Under this standard, securities are to be classified into one of the
following three categories and accounted for as follows:
• Securities that are generally used with the objective of generating profits on short-term differences in price are classified
as trading securities and measured at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses included in earnings.
• Securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and measured at amortized cost.
• Securities classified as neither trading securities nor held-to-maturity securities are classified as other securities and measured at fair value, with either unrealized holding gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as a net amount in
a separate component of stockholders’ equity until realized or unrealized holding losses included in earnings and unrealized gains excluded from earnings and reported as a net amount in a separate component of stockholders’ equity until
realized.
The Company reports unrealized holding gains and losses of other securities with fair values as a net amount in a separate
component of stockholders' equity until realized. Other securities without fair values are carried at cost. In computing realized gain or loss, cost of other securities was principally determined by the moving-average method.
(e) Inventories
Inventories are stated principally at the lower of cost or market (certain consolidated subsidiaries use the cost method). Cost
is determined by the moving-average method.
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(f ) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets by the
declining-balance method, except for certain buildings which are depreciated by the straight-line method.
(g) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are mainly amortized over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets by the straight-line method.
(h) Retirement and Severance Benefits
The Company accounts for retirement and severance benefits in accordance with “Accounting Standard for Retirement
Benefits” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. Under this standard, allowance for retirement and severance benefits for employees is provided based on the estimated retirement benefit obligation and the pension assets.
A retirement allowance for directors and executive officers has been made for the vested benefits to which they are entitled
if they were to retire or sever immediately at the balance sheet date.
(i) Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance with “Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. Under this standard, in principle, net assets or liabilities arising from derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gain or loss included in earnings.
Hedging transactions, that meet the criteria of hedge accounting as regulated in “Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments,” are accounted for using deferral hedge accounting, which requires the unrealized gain or loss to be deferred as
a liability or asset until gain or loss relating to the hedge object is recognized.
(j) Foreign Currency Translations
The Company accounts for foreign currency transactions in accordance with “Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency
Transaction” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. Under this standard, foreign currency transactions are
translated into yen on the basis of the rates in effect at the transaction date. At year-end, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or
losses resulting from the translation of foreign currencies, including gains and losses on settlement, are credited or charged to
income as incurred.
The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into the reporting currency of yen as follows:
all assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date; stockholders’ equity accounts are
translated at historical rates; income and expenses are translated at an average of exchange rates in effect during the year; and a
comprehensive adjustment resulting from the translation of assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity is included in minority
interests and, as “Foreign currency translation adjustments,” a separate component of stockholders’ equity.
(k) Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to be applied to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled.
(l) Treasury Stock
Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement (ASB Statement) No.1,
“Accounting Standards for the Company’s Own Shares and the Withdrawal of Legal Reserve.” Under this standard, treasury
stock is recorded at cost as a deduction of stockholders’ equity. When the company reissues the treasury stock as common
stock, the difference between the issuance price and the cost of the treasury stock is accounted for as capital surplus.
The adoption of the accounting standard did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
(m) Net Income per Share
Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted ASB Statement No.2, “Calculations of Earnings Per Share of the current net
earnings.” Under this standard, basic net income per share is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year. Diluted net income per share reflects the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity.
Previously, net income per share was computed by dividing income which includes the portion not available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each year.
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2. BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT TRANSLATION
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader, have
been translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥106=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the Tokyo Foreign
Exchange Market as of March 31, 2004. This translation should not be construed as a representation that any amounts
shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
The following is a summary of the amortized cost basis, gross unrealized holding gains or losses and aggregate fair value of
other securities by major security types as of March 31, 2004 and 2003.
Millions of yen
Amortized Gross gains
cost basis
or losses

Aggregate
fair value

Amortized Gross gains
cost basis
or losses

2004

Other securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Equity securities ..................................................
Debt securities.....................................................
....................................................................
Other securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Equity securities ..................................................
Debt securities.....................................................

Aggregate
fair value

2003

¥4,020
6
4,026

¥4,956
2
4,958

¥8,976
8
8,984

¥2,497
—
2,497

¥2,174
—
2,174

¥4,671
—
4,671

247
11
258
¥4,284

(10)
237
(3)
8
(13)
245
¥4,945 ¥9,229

1,826
22
1,848
¥4,345

(246) 1,580
(8)
14
(254) 1,594
¥1,920 ¥6,265

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Amortized Gross gains
cost basis
or losses

Aggregate
fair value

2004

Other securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Equity securities ..................................................
Debt securities.....................................................
Other securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Equity securities .....................................................
Debt securities........................................................
....................................................................

$37,925 $46,755 $84,680
56
19
75
37,981 46,774 84,755
2,330
(94) 2,236
104
(29)
75
2,434
(123) 2,311
$40,415 $46,651 $87,066

It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of investments in non-marketable securities because of the lack of a market
price and difficulty in estimating fair value without incurring excessive cost. The carrying amount of these investments at
March 31, 2004 and 2003 totaled ¥1,771 million ($16,708 thousand) and ¥1,794 million, respectively.
As of March 31, 2004 and 2003, certain subsidiaries held held-to-maturity securities, which consist of corporate bonds,
amounting to ¥189 million ($1,783 thousand) and ¥204 million, respectively. Gross unrealized holding gains and losses of
these securities were not material.
Information about the contractual maturities of held-to-maturity securities and other securities with contractual maturities
as of March 31, 2004 are as follows:
Millions of yen
Within
one year

Debt securities:
Corporate bonds .................................................
Other ..................................................................
....................................................................

¥—
—
¥—

After one
year through
five years

¥189
16
¥205

Thousands of U.S. dollars
After
five years

Within
one year

¥—
—
¥—

$—
—
$—

After one
year through
five years

$1,783
151
$1,934

After
five years

$—
—
$—
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4. INVENTORIES
Inventories as of March 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Finished goods ........................................................................................
Semi-finished goods ................................................................................
Work in process ......................................................................................
Raw materials..........................................................................................

2004

2003

2004

¥12,806
2,195
12,607
8,990
¥36,598

¥12,947
1,921
11,294
9,546
¥35,708

$120,811
20,708
118,934
84,811
$345,264

5. INCOME TAXES
The income tax expenses (benefits) reflected in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 consist of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Current tax expense ......................................................
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ......................................

2004

2003

¥ 6,101
8,394
¥14,495

¥12,358
(2,329)
¥10,029

2002

2004

¥7,727
(2,600)
¥5,127

$ 57,556
79,189
$136,745

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based on income, which in the aggregate
resulted in a normal income tax rate of 41.7% for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
On March 31, 2003, a reduction of the income tax rate for business tax was enacted in Japan, and is effective from April
1, 2004. With this adoption, the aggregated normal income tax rate for domestic companies will be approximately 40.4% for
the year ending March 31, 2005. As a result, deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, as of March 31, 2003 decreased
by ¥642 million, and income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2003 and net unrealized holding gain on securities as of
March 31, 2003 increased by ¥669 million and ¥27 million, respectively.
Reconciliations between the normal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before
income taxes and minority interests are as follows:
Normal income tax rate .............................................................................................
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ...............................................................
Equity in (earnings) loss of affiliated companies .....................................................
Amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired...............................................
Enacted changes in tax laws and rate in Japan ........................................................
Other.....................................................................................................................
Effective income tax rate ............................................................................................

2004

2003

2002

41.7%
2.5
(1.4)
0.7
—
2.3
45.8%

41.7%
4.1
0.5
1.0
3.4
0.1
50.8%

41.7%
9.1
1.6
2.7
—
(0.1)
55.0%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
March 31, 2004 and 2003 are presented below:
Millions of yen

Total gross deferred tax assets:
Retirement and severance benefits ........................................................
Accrued bonus......................................................................................
Accrued business tax .............................................................................
Allowance for doubtful receivables........................................................
Other....................................................................................................
Total gross deferred tax liability:
Tax purpose reserves regulated by Japanese Tax Law ............................
Net unrealized holding gain on securities..............................................
Prepaid pension cost .............................................................................
Refundable business tax ........................................................................
Other....................................................................................................
Net deferred tax assets ..............................................................................
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2004

2003

2004

¥13,029
4,575
337
1,386
8,886
28,213

¥17,294
3,469
854
1,492
10,631
33,740

$122,915
43,160
3,179
13,076
83,830
266,160

(356)
(1,991)
(2,870)
(178)
(1,695)
(7,090)
¥21,123

(473)
(806)
—
—
(1,814)
(3,093)
¥30,647

(3,358)
(18,783)
(27,075)
(1,679)
(15,991)
(66,886)
$199,274

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2004 and 2003 are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets under the following items:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Prepaid expenses and other current assets .................................................
Other assets ..............................................................................................
Other liabilities.........................................................................................
Net deferred tax assets ..............................................................................

2004

2003

2004

¥10,958
10,454
(289)
¥21,123

¥ 9,607
21,611
(571)
¥30,647

$103,377
98,623
(2,726)
$199,274

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, at cost as of March 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2004

2003

Land ......................................................................................................... ¥ 24,073
Buildings and structures ........................................................................... 122,991
Machinery and equipment........................................................................ 372,642
Construction in progress...........................................................................
2,875
¥522,581

2004

¥ 24,729
123,253
371,133
3,316
¥522,431

$ 227,104
1,160,292
3,515,490
27,123
$4,930,009

7. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2004

Unsecured debentures:
2nd series, due 2006, interest 3.5% ......................................................
4th series, due 2009, interest 2.3% .......................................................
5th series, due 2004, interest 1.44% .....................................................
6th series, due 2007, interest 2.01% .....................................................
7th series, due 2008, interest 2.21% .....................................................
Due 2003, interest 2.75%, issued by a consolidated subsidiary .............
Unsecured convertible debentures:
Due 2003, interest 0.6%, issued by a consolidated subsidiary ...............
Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies:
Secured by various assets and mortgages on property, plant
and equipment, maturing 2004–2008, interest 1.4–3.3% .................
Unsecured, maturing 2004–2009, interest 0.35–4.3% .........................
Less current installments

2003

2004

¥10,000
5,000
3,000
3,000
4,000
—

¥10,000
5,000
3,000
3,000
4,000
2,000

$ 94,340
47,170
28,302
28,302
37,736
—

—

1,105

—

1,462
4,225
30,687
4,587
¥26,100

1,237
5,957
35,299
5,291
¥30,008

13,792
39,858
289,500
43,274
$246,226

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2005 are as follows:
Years ending March 31,

2006........................................................................................................................................
2007........................................................................................................................................
2008........................................................................................................................................
2009........................................................................................................................................

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

¥12,725
4,194
4,138
5,043
¥26,100

$120,047
39,566
39,038
47,575
$246,226

The assets pledged as collateral for short-term and long-term debt at March 31, 2004 are as follows:
Millions of yen

Property, plant and equipment................................................................................................
Other ......................................................................................................................................

¥5,973
730
¥6,703

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

$56,349
6,887
$63,236
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Loans of ¥945 million ($8,915 thousand) from a bank as of March 31, 2004 are secured by an investment in Hitachi
Powdered Metals Co., Ltd., a 53.3% (17,072 thousand shares) owned subsidiary. The 3,700 thousand shares in Hitachi
Powdered Metals Co., Ltd. are collateralized, and the fair value of the shares as of March 31, 2004 was ¥2,786 million ($26,283
thousand).
As is customary in Japan, both short-term and long-term bank loans are made under general agreements which provide that
security and guarantees for present and future indebtedness will be given upon request of the bank, and that the bank shall have
the right, as the obligations become due or in the event of default, to offset cash deposits against such obligations due the bank.
Generally, certain secured and unsecured loan agreements provide, among other things, that the lenders or trustees shall have
the right to have any distribution of earnings, including the payment of dividends and the issuance of additional capital stock,
submitted to them for prior approval and also grant them the right to request additional security or mortgages on property,
plant and equipment.

8. LIABILITY FOR RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have a number of contributory and noncontributory pension plans to provide
retirement and severance benefits to substantially all the employees.
Principal pension plans are unfunded defined benefit pension plans. Under the plans, employees are entitled to lump-sum
payments based on the current rate of pay and the length of service upon retirement or termination of employment for reasons
other than dismissal for cause. The liability under these plans is partially funded by contributions to pension fund trusts.
In addition to the above plans, the Company and certain subsidiaries have contributory defined benefit pension plans
(Employees’ Pension Fund (EPF) as is stipulated by the Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law) covering substantially all
employees. EPF is composed of the substitutional portion of Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance and the corporate portion
based on a contributory defined benefit pension arrangement established at the discretion of employers. On June 15, 2001, the
Japanese government issued a new law concerning the defined benefit plan. Following the enactment of the new law, the
Company and three subsidiaries obtained an approval from the Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare for exemption from the
future benefit obligation with respect to the substitutional portion of EPF on March 14, 2003.
Subsequently, the Company and subsidiaries made another application for separation of the remaining substitutional portion (the
benefit obligation related to past services), and final approval of separation was granted on April 1, 2004 as indicated in Note 18.
After the approval of separation, the remaining benefit obligation of the substitutional portion (benefits earned by past services) and
the related government-specified portion of the plan assets of the EPF will be transferred to the Japanese government, and settlement
gain will be recognized in accordance with the paragraph 44-2 of the “Practical Guidelines of Accounting for Retirement Benefits
(Interim Report)” (Accounting Committee Report No. 13 issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants).
Funding status of the Company’s plans as of March 31, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
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2004

2003

Projected benefit obligations ..............................................................
Plan assets at fair value .......................................................................
Funding status ...................................................................................
Unrecognized actuarial loss ................................................................
Unrecognized prior service benefit .....................................................
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet ..................

¥(167,822)
115,191
(52,631)
33,919
(4,734)
¥ (23,446)

¥(164,914)
77,187
(87,727)
51,646
(5,336)
¥ (41,417)

$(1,583,226)
1,086,707
(496,519)
319,990
(44,660)
$ (221,189)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets..........................................
Retirement and severance benefits.....................................................

¥

¥

$
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7,104
(30,550)
¥ (23,446)

2
(41,419)
¥ (41,417)

2004

67,019
(288,208)
$ (221,189)

Net periodic benefit costs for the contributory, funded benefit pension plans and the unfunded lump-sum payment plans
of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following components:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Service cost, net of employees’ contributions ................
Interest cost ..................................................................
Expected return on plan assets for the period................
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss (Note a) ....
Amortization of prior service benefit (Note b) ..............
Net periodic benefit cost...............................................

2004

2003

2002

2004

¥ 4,075
4,128
(1,496)
5,623
(785)
¥11,545

¥3,858
4,909
(1,424)
1,774
(482)
¥8,635

¥4,475
4,961
(1,510)
1,098
(240)
¥8,784

$ 38,443
38,943
(14,113)
53,047
(7,405)
$108,915

Notes: a. Actuarial gains and losses are amortized using the straight-line method over certain years, principally over 10 years, which are within the
estimated average remaining service years of employees.
b. Prior service benefits and costs are amortized using the straight-line method over certain years, principally over 10 years, which are within
the estimated average remaining service years of employees.
c. Besides retirement and severance benefits under the defined benefit pension plans above, special termination benefits of ¥1,480 million
($13,962 thousand), ¥1,675 million and ¥2,727 million were paid and charged to earnings during the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Actuarial assumptions used in the accounting for the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans are principally as follows:
Discount rate ..........................................................................................................................
Expected return rate on plan assets ..........................................................................................

2004

2003

2.5%
2.0%

2.5%
2.0%

9. COMMON STOCK
The Japanese Commercial Code (JCC) had required designation of par value to all common stock at least 50% of new share
issuance price, or the common stock par value prescribed by the JCC. Effective October 1, 2001, the JCC was amended to
eliminate the provision of common stock par value resulting in all common stock being recorded with no par value.
Conversions of convertible debentures issued subsequent to October 1, 1982 into common stock were accounted for in
accordance with the provisions of the JCC by crediting one-half of the conversion price to each of the common stock
account and the capital surplus account.

10. LEGAL RESERVE AND CASH DIVIDENDS
The Japanese Commercial Code (JCC) had provided that earnings in an amount equal to at least 10% of appropriations of
retained earnings to be paid in cash be appropriated as a legal reserve until such reserve equals 25% of stated common stock.
This legal reserve was not available for dividends but might be used to reduce a deficit by resolution of the shareholders or
might be transferred to stated common stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.
Effective October 1, 2001, the JCC was amended to require earnings in an amount equal to at least 10% of appropriations of retained earnings to be paid in cash be appropriated as a legal reserve until total additional paid in capital and legal
reserve equals 25% of stated common stock. In addition to reduction of a deficit and transfer to stated common stock, either
additional paid in capital or legal reserve may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders to the extent that
the amount of total additional paid in capital and legal reserve exceeds 25% of stated common stock. Legal reserve of ¥3,564
million ($33,623 thousand) is included in earnings surplus as of March 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Cash dividends, directors’ bonuses and appropriations to the legal reserve charged to retained earnings during the years
ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 represent dividends and bonuses paid out during those years and the related appropriations to the legal reserve. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any provision for the semiannual dividend of ¥6.0 ($0.06) per share totaling ¥1,243 million ($11,726 thousand) or directors’ bonuses of subsidiaries of
¥130 million ($1,226 thousand), subsequently proposed by the Board of Directors in respect of the year ended March 31,
2004.

11. TREASURY STOCK
The Japanese Commercial Code (JCC) had imposed certain restrictions on acquisition and disposal of treasury stock.
Effective October 1, 2001, the JCC eliminated the provision of these restrictions and allowed acquisitions of treasury stock
to the extent of distributable funds appropriated by resolution of the shareholders.
At the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting in June 2002 and 2003, it was approved to acquire up to 20,000 thousand
shares of the Company’s common stock each year, for aggregate acquisition price not exceeding ¥40,000 million and ¥30,000
million as treasury stock for the period, respectively, from the close of the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting to the close of
the next ordinary general shareholders’ meeting, pursuant to the provision of the JCC. Acquisition of treasury stock had not
taken place due to the absence of circumstances that require the Company to purchase its shares. No resolution was proposed
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for the acquisition of the Company’s common stock at the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting on June 25, 2004.
According to the JCC amendment which became effective on September 25, 2003, treasury stock acquisition is now subject to the resolution by the Board of Directors and should not exceed the Company’s retained earnings available for dividends if the articles of incorporation permit it. At the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting on June 25, 2004, the
Company’s related article of incorporation was amended as such.
Pursuant to the provisions of the JCC, shareholders may request the Company to acquire their shares below a minimum
trading lot (100 shares) as shares below a minimum trading lot cannot be publicly traded and do not carry a voting right.
The JCC also provides for that a shareholder holding shares less than a minimum trading lot is entitled to request a company
to sell its treasury stock, if any, to the shareholder up to a minimum trading lot, provided that sale of treasury stock is
allowed under the articles of incorporation. In this connection, the Company amended the related provisions of the articles
of incorporation at the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting in June 2003. The above transactions during the year ended
March 31, 2004 resulted in the net increase of treasury stock of 6,762 shares.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
At March 31, 2004, outstanding commitments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment were ¥2,833 million
($26,726 thousand), and contingent liabilities for guarantees for loans amounted to ¥1,034 million ($9,755 thousand).
It is common practice in Japan for companies, in the ordinary course of business, to receive promissory notes in the settlement of trade accounts receivable and to transfer them by endorsement to suppliers in the settlement of accounts payable.
The Company and its subsidiaries are contingently liable for trade notes endorsed, which amounted to ¥2,470 million
($23,302 thousand) and ¥3,301 million at March 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

13. NET INCOME PER SHARE INFORMATION
Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No.2, “Calculations of
Earnings Per Share of the current net earnings” as described Note 1(m).
The reconciliation of the number of shares and the amounts used in the basic and diluted net income per share computations is as follows:
Thousands of shares

Weighted average number of shares on which basic net income per share is calculated.......
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock purchase right.......................................................................................................
Convertible debentures ..................................................................................................
Number of shares on which diluted net income per share is calculated...............................

2004

2003

207,224

207,237

7
—
207,231

—
4,029
211,266

Millions of yen

Net income....................................................................................................
Net income not applicable to common stock holders:
Appropriations for directors’ bonuses (Note a)...........................................
Net income on which basic net income per share is calculated .......................
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible debentures ..............................................................................
Net income on which diluted net income per share is calculated....................

2004

2003

¥15,784

¥8,644

(144)
15,640

(374)
8,270

(6)
¥15,634

84
¥8,354
Yen

Net income per share:
Basic ..........................................................................................................
Diluted ......................................................................................................

¥75.47
75.44

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2004

$148,906
(1,359)
147,547
(56)
$147,491
U.S. dollars

¥39.91
39.54

$0.71
0.71

Note: The Company and certain subsidiaries adopted the Company with Committees System under the JCC in June, 2003,
and as a result, the directors’ bonuses of the Company and some subsidiaries are charged directly to income for the year
ended March 31, 2004. The directors’ bonuses of other subsidiaries are continuously appropriated from the retained earnings.
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14. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
Research and development expenses included in general and administrative expenses and gross production cost for the years
ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 amounted to ¥24,908 million ($234,981 thousand), ¥22,933 million and ¥22,894
million, respectively.

15. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2004

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest .....................................................................
Income taxes.............................................................

2003

¥ 1,105
14,724

¥1,299
8,481

2002

2004

¥ 2,104
16,900

$ 10,425
138,906

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company and certain subsidiaries operate globally and are exposed to market risks arising from fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. In order to manage those risks, the Company and certain subsidiaries enter into
various agreements on derivative financial instruments, including forward exchange contracts, currency option contracts and
interest rate swap agreements. Forward exchange contracts are utilized to manage risks arising from foreign currency receivables from export of finished goods; foreign currency payables from the import of raw materials; and forecasted foreign currency sales and purchase transactions. Currency option contracts and interest rate swap agreements are utilized to manage
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk for debts. The Company and its subsidiaries have no derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to potential credit-related losses in the
event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments and derivative financial instruments, but it is not
expected that any counterparties will fail to meet their obligations, because most of the counterparties are authentic financial
institutions.
The Company and its subsidiaries have also developed hedging policies to control various aspects of derivative financial
transactions including authorization levels and transaction volumes. Based on these policies, the Company and its subsidiaries hedge, within certain scopes, risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The
Company and its subsidiaries review periodically the effectiveness of all the hedge policies to take account of the cumulative
cash flows and any changes in the market.
The estimated fair values of the derivative financial instruments, excluding certain interest rate swap agreements, which are
accounted for using deferral hedge accounting, by major instrument types as of March 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:
Millions of yen
Notional
amounts

Estimated Unrealized
fair values gains (losses)

Notional
amounts

Estimated Unrealized
fair values gains (losses)

2004

Currency option transactions:
To sell foreign currencies.....................................
To buy foreign currencies....................................
Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies.....................................
....................................................................

¥ 2,252
1,219
3,471
4,589

2003

¥ (22)
20
(2)

¥ 3
(4)
(1)

¥ 106
106
212

4,545

44
¥43

1,011

¥

(3)
0
(3)

1,005

¥ (2)
(1)
(3)
6
¥3

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Unrealized
gains (losses)

2004

Currency option transactions:
To sell foreign currencies.....................................
To buy foreign currencies....................................
....................................................................
Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies.....................................
....................................................................

$ 21,245
11,500
32,745
43,292

$ (208)
189
(19)

$ 28
(38)
(10)

42,877

415
$405

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from third party financial institutions. The fair values of currency-related transactions are estimated using forward exchange rates.

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

47

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company and its subsidiaries’ business segments are classified as “Electronics-Related Products,” “Chemical-Related
Products” and “Housing Equipment and Environmental Facilities.”
The main products of each business segment are provided on page 6 of this annual report.
Business segment information:
Millions of yen

2004
ElectronicsRelated
Products

Sales to outside customers.....................................
Intersegment sales.................................................
Operating expenses
Operating income.................................................
Assets....................................................................
Depreciation and amortization of tangible and
intangible fixed assets........................................
Additions to tangible and
intangible fixed assets........................................

ChemicalRelated
Products

Housing
Equipment and
Environmental
Facilities

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

¥225,774 ¥213,066 ¥82,518 ¥521,358 ¥
— ¥521,358
1,311
1,046
340
2,697
(2,697)
—
227,085 214,112 82,858 524,055
(2,697) 521,358
203,795 205,370 81,149 490,314
(2,730) 487,584
¥ 23,290 ¥ 8,742 ¥ 1,709 ¥ 33,741 ¥
33 ¥ 33,774
¥168,635 ¥180,842 ¥45,492 ¥394,969

¥(1,134) ¥393,835

11,896

11,824

2,785

26,505

—

26,505

8,564

15,564

2,203

26,331

—

26,331

Eliminations

Consolidated

Millions of yen

2003
ElectronicsRelated
Products

Sales to outside customers.....................................
Intersegment sales.................................................
Operating expenses
Operating income.................................................
Assets....................................................................
Depreciation and amortization of tangible and
intangible fixed assets..........................................
Additions to tangible and
intangible fixed assets..........................................

ChemicalRelated
Products

Housing
Equipment and
Environmental
Facilities

Total

¥205,004 ¥208,440 ¥80,782 ¥494,226
1,228
371
268
1,867
206,232 208,811 81,050 496,093
192,573 198,929 79,680 471,182
¥ 13,659 ¥ 9,882 ¥ 1,370 ¥ 24,911

¥

— ¥494,226
(1,867)
—
(1,867) 494,226
(1,886) 469,296
¥
19 ¥ 24,930

¥178,031 ¥182,558 ¥47,898 ¥408,487

¥(1,339) ¥407,148

13,938

11,096

2,669

27,703

—

27,703

7,098

13,892

2,586

23,576

—

23,576

Eliminations

Consolidated

Millions of yen

2002
ElectronicsRelated
Products

Sales to outside customers.....................................
Intersegment sales.................................................
Operating expenses
Operating income.................................................
Assets....................................................................
Depreciation and amortization of tangible and
intangible fixed assets..........................................
Additions to tangible and
intangible fixed assets..........................................
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ChemicalRelated
Products

Housing
Equipment and
Environmental
Facilities

Total

¥191,693 ¥204,878 ¥84,206 ¥480,777
1,250
872
31
2,153
192,943 205,750 84,237 482,930
189,764 197,198 82,952 469,914
¥ 3,179 ¥ 8,552 ¥ 1,285 ¥ 13,016

¥

— ¥480,777
(2,153)
—
(2,153) 480,777
(2,185) 467,729
¥
32 ¥ 13,048

¥189,644 ¥184,936 ¥45,143 ¥419,723

¥(1,315) ¥418,408

15,454

10,816

2,764

29,034

—

29,034

10,370

13,633

3,346

27,349

—

27,349

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2004
ElectronicsRelated
Products

Sales to outside customers ...............................
Intersegment sales ...........................................
Operating expenses
Operating income ...........................................
Assets ............................................................
Depreciation and amortization of tangible
and intangible fixed assets ...........................
Additions to tangible and
intangible fixed assets ..................................

ChemicalRelated
Products

Housing
Equipment and
Environmental
Facilities

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

$2,129,943 $2,010,057 $778,472 $4,918,472 $
—
12,368
9,868
3,208
25,444 (25,444)
2,142,311 2,019,925 781,680 4,943,916 (25,444)
1,922,594 1,937,453 765,557 4,625,604 (25,755)
$ 219,717 $ 82,472 $ 16,123 $ 318,312 $ 311

$4,918,472
—
4,918,472
4,599,849
$ 318,623

$1,590,896 $1,706,057 $429,170 $3,726,123 $(10,698)

$3,715,425

112,226

111,547

26,274

250,047

—

250,047

80,793

146,830

20,783

248,406

—

248,406

Geographic segment information:
Millions of yen

2004
Japan

Sales to outside customers.............................
Intersegment sales.........................................
Operating expenses.......................................
Operating income.........................................
Assets............................................................

¥439,618
34,908
474,526
445,976
¥ 28,550
¥343,905

Asia

¥63,159
8,046
71,205
66,615
¥ 4,590
¥48,179

Other areas

Total

Eliminations

¥18,581 ¥521,358
1,945
44,899
20,526 566,257
19,955 532,546
¥ 571 ¥ 33,711
¥13,433 ¥405,517

Consolidated

¥
— ¥521,358
(44,899)
—
(44,899) 521,358
(44,962) 487,584
¥
63 ¥ 33,774
¥(11,682) ¥393,835

Millions of yen

2003
Japan

Sales to outside customers.............................
Intersegment sales.........................................
Operating expenses.......................................
Operating income.........................................
Assets............................................................

¥418,934
29,905
448,839
427,763
¥ 21,076
¥357,772

Asia

¥57,378
7,224
64,602
60,726
¥ 3,876
¥45,949

Other areas

¥17,914
1,760
19,674
19,539
¥ 135
¥14,004

Total

Eliminations

¥494,226
38,889
533,115
508,028
¥ 25,087
¥417,725

Consolidated

¥

— ¥494,226
(38,889)
—
(38,889) 494,226
(38,732) 469,296
¥ (157) ¥ 24,930
¥(10,577) ¥407,148

Millions of yen

2002
Japan

Sales to outside customers.............................
Intersegment sales.........................................
Operating expenses.......................................
Operating income.........................................
Assets............................................................

¥408,942
22,601
431,543
421,969
¥ 9,574
¥367,496

Asia

¥57,139
6,374
63,513
60,045
¥ 3,468
¥46,333

Other areas

Total

Eliminations

¥14,696 ¥480,777
1,160
30,135
15,856
510,912
16,150
498,164
¥ (294) ¥ 12,748
¥14,250 ¥428,079

Consolidated

¥

— ¥480,777
(30,135)
—
(30,135) 480,777
(30,435) 467,729
¥
300 ¥ 13,048
¥ (9,671) ¥418,408

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2004

Sales to outside customers.............................
Intersegment sales.........................................
.........................................................
Operating expenses.......................................
Operating income.........................................
Assets .........................................................

Japan

Asia

Other areas

Total

Eliminations

$4,147,340
329,321
4,476,661
4,207,321
$ 269,340
$3,244,387

$595,840
75,906
671,746
628,443
$ 43,303
$454,519

$175,292
18,349
193,641
188,255
$ 5,386
$126,726

$4,918,472
423,576
5,342,048
5,024,019
$ 318,029
$3,825,632

Consolidated

$
— $4,918,472
(423,576)
—
(423,576) 4,918,472
(424,170) 4,599,849
$
594 $ 318,623
$(110,207) $3,715,425
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Overseas sales:
Overseas sales, which include export sales of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries and sales (other than exports to
Japan) of the foreign consolidated subsidiaries, are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

¥ 92,323
34,277
¥126,600
¥521,358

Amount

Overseas sales:
Asia ............................
Other areas..................

Consolidated net sales .....

2003

Percentage of
consolidated
net sales

2002

2004

Amount

Percentage of
consolidated
net sales

Amount

Percentage of
consolidated
net sales

17.7%
6.6
24.3%

¥ 71,785
35,241
¥107,026

14.5%
7.2
21.7%

¥ 67,252
32,225
¥ 99,477

14.0%
6.7
20.7%

$ 870,972
323,368
1,194,340

100.0%

¥494,226

100.0%

¥480,777

100.0%

$4,918,472

Amount

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
As indicated in Note 8, the Company and three subsidiaries obtained an approval of the transfer of substitutional portion of
the benefit obligation related to the past service as well as the related portion of the plan assets of the Employees’ Pension
Fund on April 1, 2004. The settlement gain of ¥6.7 billion ($63 million) will be recognized as other income for the year
ending March 31, 2005 in accordance with the paragraph 44-2 of the “Practical Guidelines of Accounting for Retirement
Benefits (Interim Report)” (Accounting Committee Report No. 13 issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants).
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R E P O RT

OF

I N D E P E N D E N T A U D I TO R S

The Board of Directors
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries as
of March 31, 2003 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended, all expressed in yen. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2003 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
As discussed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company and three subsidiaries obtained an approval of
the transfer of substitutional portion of the benefit obligation related to the past service as well as the related portion of the plan
assets of the Employees’ Pension Fund on April 1, 2004.
The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2004
are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in
our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 2.

June 25, 2004
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MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

JAPAN

AND

A F F I L I AT E S

(As of April 1, 2004)

ASIA & OCEANIA

MANUFACTURING

MANUFACTURING

SALES AND SERVICE

Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd.

Hitachi Chemical Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and
plastic products

Manufacturing and marketing of copper clad
laminates for printed wiring boards, and
photosensitive dry films

Marketing of Hitachi Chemical products

Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Co. (Hong Kong) Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of powdered metal
products

Hitachi Chemical (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring boards

Marketing of Hitachi Chemical products
Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry
films for printed wiring boards

Hitachi AIC Inc.

Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical International Co., (Taiwan) Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring
boards and capacitors

Manufacturing and marketing of photosensitive dry
films for printed wiring boards

Marketing of Hitachi Chemical products

Hitachi Housetec Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Co. (Taiwan) Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of housing
equipment and environmental facilities

Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring
boards
Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry
films for printed wiring boards

Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

Hitachi Chemical (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products Co.,
Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of plastic automotive
parts and molded synthetic resin products

Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of adhesives and
synthetic resin products

Nikka Kaseihin Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of foamed styrene
products

Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of carbon products

MANUFACTURING
Hitachi Chemical Diagnostics, Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of diagnostic reagents

Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding
compounds and die bonding materials for
semiconductor devices

RNAture, Inc.

Bioclone Australia Pty Ltd.

Tri-Continent Scientific, Inc.

Manufacturing and marketing of diagnostic reagents

Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials (Korea)
Co., Ltd.
Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry
films for printed wiring boards

PT. Hitachi Chemical Electronic
Products Indonesia
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring
boards

Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of foodwrapping films

U.S.A.

Manufacturing and marketing of gene expression
enabling products
Manufacturing and marketing of OEM
liquid-handling products and instrument
components

Sintering Technologies, Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of powdered metal
products

Hitachi Chemical DuPont MicroSystems L.L.C.*
Manufacturing and marketing of polyimide
materials for semiconductor devices

Hitachi Chemical (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Industrial Materials Co., Ltd.

Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry
films for printed wiring boards, and anisotropic
conductive films for liquid crystal displays

Manufacturing and marketing of traffic marking
materials and molded synthetic resin products

Hitachi Powdered Metals (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Nippon Denkai, Ltd.*

Manufacturing and marketing of powdered metal
products

RESEARCH
Hitachi Chemical Research Center, Inc.
R&D in biotechnology

SALES AND SERVICE
Hitachi Chemical Co. America, Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of metal foil

Xinyi Rihong Plastic Chemical Co., Ltd.

Marketing of Hitachi Chemical products

Manufacturing and marketing of rosin derivatives

INSTALLATION, TRADING, DESIGN, AND
SERVICE
Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

EUROPE

Marketing of electronics- and chemicalrelated products and others

Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.*

SALES AND SERVICE

Nikka Equipment & Engineering Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of plastic automotive
parts

Marketing of Hitachi Chemical products

Design and manufacturing of facilities and machinery

Hitachi Kasei Business Service Co., Ltd.
Outsourcing of training, education and other
business services
Leasing of office equipment

Hitachi Chemical Electronics Co., Ltd.
Design and manufacturing of printed wiring boards

*Affiliate accounted for by the equity method
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Japan Brake (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

CSB Battery Co., Ltd.*
Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and
electric equipment

Thai Sintered Products Co., Ltd.*
Manufacturing and marketing of powdered metal
products

Hitachi Chemical Europe GmbH
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C O R P O R AT E D ATA

(As of March 31, 2004)

Hitachi Chemical Company, Ltd.
Head Office:

Shinjuku-Mitsui Building
1-1, Nishi-Shinjuku 2-chome
Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 163-0449, Japan
Phone: 81-3-3346 -3111
Fax: 81-3-3346 -2977

Established:

October 10, 1962

Paid-in Capital:

¥15,287,746,845

Number of Employees:

3,212

Common Stock:

Authorized: 800,000,000 shares
Issued: 207,256,708 shares

Independent Auditors:

Ernst & Young ShinNihon

Transfer Agent and
Registrar:

Tokyo Securities Transfer Agent Co., Ltd.
Togin Building, 3rd floor
4-2, Marunouchi 1-chome
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan
Phone: 81-3-3212-4611

Investor Relations Contact: Corporate Strategy Office
Public and Investor Relations Group
Hitachi Chemical Company, Ltd.
Shinjuku-Mitsui Building
1-1, Nishi-Shinjuku 2-chome
Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 163-0449, Japan
Phone: 81-3-5381-2370
Fax: 81-3-5381-3023
www.hitachi-chem.co.jp

Number of Shareholders: 15,451
Annual General
Shareholders’ Meeting:

June

Stock Exchange Listings: Tokyo, Osaka
(Ticker Symbol Number: 4217)
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